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Summary of Results

Scottish Re Group Limited (“SRGL”, the “Company”’wé&”, “our” and “us”) is a holding company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islanitis eur principal executive office in Bermuda.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 20RGLSreported net income attributable to ordinary
shareholders of $78.0 million, or $0.36 per dilutedinary share, and $177.5 million, or $0.82 piéutedd share,
respectively.

The $78.0 million of net income attributable to ioaty shareholders for the three months ended 30n2010
primarily was driven by an increase in the marlatig of the Company’s invested assets.

As of June 30, 2010, SRGL and Scottish Annuity &lnsurance Company (Cayman) Ltd. (“SALIC”) had a
combined $131.4 million of unrestricted assets, parad to $138.8 million at December 31, 2009. Timestricted
assets of SRGL and SALIC represent assets whicharield in trust accounts for the benefit of cgdiompanies
under reinsurance agreements. These unrestastsds were available at June 30, 2010 to meethiigations of
SRGL and SALIC. There can be no assurances thaariount of unrestricted assets held by SRGL andGA
will not further decrease from period to periodtle future or that such decrease will not be mallgrdifferent
from period to period in the future.



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollarsxeept share data)

June 30, December 31,
2010 2009
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Fixed maturity investments, trading at fair valle...............cccooi e $ 3,104,484 $ 2,988,164
Preferred stock, trading at fair Value ......ccccceooo oo 79,373 77,410
Cash and cash equUIVaIENTS ...........cooo i 407,436 390,025
Other INVESTMENTS ...oeiiiiieiiee et e et e e e st e b e e e e e e nnneee 20,376 21,482
Funds withheld at INtEreSt..........ooi i 591,699 608,500

TOtAl INVESIMENTS. ..ottt ettt n s et es s s 4,203,368 4,085,581
Accrued INterest reCRIVABIE. ..............ceeeeveeeeeeee et n et e 27,365 24,422
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable..............cooociiiii e 126,119 161,977
Deferred aCqUISItION COSES ......uuuiiiiiiiiiceeeeee ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaes 289,080 296,822
Amount recoverable fromM FEINSUIEIS ......... o eerrrriiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeearrrrrennnn e eeaaeeess 589,631 606,347
Present value of iN-force bUSINESS ........ccceeeeeiiiiiee e, 36,733 38,316
Other @SSETS........viiieieiece e s 71,983 67,185
Embedded derivative assets at fair Value ...ccceeeeeeceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie e, 228 -
Current iNCOME taX rECEIVADIE ......... ... et e ettt e e eeeeens 152 12,762
DEFEITEA TAX ASSELS ... veiveeeriieeiieesetesee e eeses st e st e st e et e et e s eesaeesreesbessaesaesomnesreesresree e 3,932 3,922

TOUAL ASSELS ....vveeeeeee ettt meemee e e et e et e e et e et e e et eee e et eateeaemeeeeneneene e e eaeaeeas $ 5,348,591 $ 5,297,334
LIABILITIES
Reserves for future policy benefits ... $ 1,518,010 $ 1,542,639
Interest sensitive contract lAbilities ... oo e, 1,465,831 1,518,365
Collateral fINANCE FACTIIIES. ...........ceeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e et 1,300,000 1,300,000
Accounts payable and other liabilities..........ceevvviiiiiei e 47,726 68,921
Embedded derivative liabilities at fair ValUe w.......coeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 35,527 35,732
Reinsurance balances payable ...........oo e 110,809 137,597
Deferred tax Nabilities ..........oou i 47,920 50,143
Long term debt at fair VAIUE ...........uiviieeeee e e s 60,180 55,068
(e oo IR =Y ¢ e (=] ] AR 129,500 129,500

TOtal HADILIES .......eviiveceiciccee ettt st 4,715,503 4,837,965
MEZZANINE EQUITY
Convertible cumulative participating preferredr&sa (liquidation preference, $737.0

40T 1TTo T o ) I PP PRP PP 555,857 555,857
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ equity i@@gf
Ordinary shares, par value $0.01:

Issued and outstanding 68,383,370 shares (200B8®&870) ............cceeevevvvvvvceneennn 684 684
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares, parevéiOl:

Issued: 5,000,000 shares (outstanding: 2010 -6/4088; 2009 — 5,000,000)............... 120,152 125,000
Additional paid-in capital 1,217,880 1,217,535
] e 11 =10 o (] 11| SRR (1,269,844) (1,447,375)

Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ eg(deficit)............cccccevvvvvvvremmmmernnns 68,872 (104,156)
[N Lo Yol Tal o [T To a1 (=T =] 8,359 7,668

Total @QUILY (AEFICIL) .....v.vveeee e eeeeee sttt n e s e 77,231 (96,488)

Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and total eguEiefiCit)..............ccccverevrescomereerennne $ 5,348,591 $ 5,297,334
Y Includes total investments of consolidated vagabterest entities (“VIE).................... $ 1,065,419
2 Includes accrued interest receivable of CONS@HRIE ............coooveveeeeie e eeeeeeeeen $ 1,464
% Includes interest rate swap of consolidated VIE..............ccccovoveieeeeereeseereeeeeeenne, $ 39,111
* Reflects collateral finance facilities of cons@lield VIE.................cccoevevevevreeeeenenennn, $ 1,300,000

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents (Unaudited)
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SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollarsxeept share data)

Three months ended

Six months ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009 (Restated)

Revenues
Premiums earned, Net ............cccocveeiveeecmeeie e, $ 117,169 $ 122,480 $ B99, $ 221,866
Fee and other income...........cccooo i, 1,490 1,062 2,789 3,412
Investment income, nNet............oooiicceccemieeeeeeeee 44,580 47,804 88,577 91,994
Net realized and unrealized gains.........cccccceeeen. 83,431 133,134 166,408 21,873
Gain on de-consolidation of collateral finance liaci - - - 1,150,114
Change in value of long term debt at fair value..... (18,033) - (15,246) -
Gain on extinguishment of debt....................... - - - 53,545
Change in value of embedded derivatives, net....... 2,704 13,335 432 293,620

Total FEVENUES ....eeeeiieiiiiiiieeeeeee e, 231,341 317,815 462,652 1,836,424
Benefits and expenses
Claims and other policy benefits ...........cccceeeeeeeen. 103,437 62,739 212,762 (227,507)
Interest credited to interest sensitive contract

lADINIES .. 13,452 4,849 26,582 31,919
Acquisition costs and other insurance expenses,.net 18,514 37,767 36,881 08,6
Operating EXPENSES........uuuierieieeeeeieeaaaeeeerereeeeeeeeeens 12,266 12,174 29,943 38,669
Collateral finance facilities expense .........cccccccee... 7,824 10,315 15,947 22,366
INtEreSt EXPENSE ....vveveeeeereeeeeie e eemeeeee e eaens 1,328 1,737 2,622 3,675

Total benefits and expenses...............comeeee... 156,821 139,381 324,737 (54,275)
Income before income taxes..........ccceeeeveeiieiineen, 74,520 178,434 137,915 1,899
Income tax benefit (EXPENSE).............voeeeeevrvevene, 35 (1,009) 36,429 (51,951)
Consolidated INCOME.........cooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 74,555 177,425 174,344 1,838
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. (451) (551) (691) (292)
Net income attributable to Scottish Re Group

LIMiIted ... 74,104 176,874 173,653 1,838,456
Gain on redemption of non-cumulative perpetual

preferred SNares..........covveveveieeseeeeeee e eeneien 3,878 - 3,878 -
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders. _$ 77,982 $ 176874 $ 177531 $ 1,838,456
Basic income per ordinary share..............c.c......... $ 112 % 255 % 2.55 $ 26.50
Diluted income per ordinary share...................... $ 036 % 081  § 0.82 $ 8.42

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)
(UNAUDITED)
(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollarsxeept share data)

Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
2010 2009
(Restated)

Share capital:
Ordinary shares:

Beginning and end Of PEIIOM. ............cueiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e cte ettt ee et re e e $ 684 $ 684
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares:

Beginning Of PEHIOM ... ..ot a e e e e e 125,000 125,000

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares redeemed..............cc.cceveeeveeeereeeveennenn, (4,848) -

Yo oY i o Y=Y e o RS 120,152 125,000
Additional paid-in capital:

Beginning Of PEHIOA ... ..o e e e e e e e 1,217,535 1,216,878

(0] 11101 I =D (o 1= £ 1= IS 345 286

[T I} 1= o o PP 1,217,880 1,217,164
Retained deficit:

Beginning Of PEHOA ... ee e ee e e e e e e e e e e s e e s rerraaaaaaaaaaaaes (1,447,375) ,1,716)

Net income attributable to Scottish Re Group Lilohite.............coooooriiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 173,653 1,838,456

Gain on redemption of non-cumulative perpetualgre shares..............c.ccoeveeveevevememe... 3,878 -

[T g Lo I o) oY= T o Lo RSO PRUPPPPPPP (1,269,844) (1,914,260)
Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ equiy (defiCit) ...........ccooeeeeeiiiiiiieneeean, $ 68,872 $ (571,412
Noncontrolling interest:

Beginning Of PEHOA ..o ee e ee e e e e e e e e e e s e e r e e e e e e aaaaaaaeaae s 7866 6,966

(NS T oo o3 1= T PP PU PR PPRP TR 691 292

Yo oY i o Y=Y e o R 8,359 7,258
Total shareholders’ equity (AEfICIt)............ovveiireiiieeeeeeeeeeee e $ 77231 $ (564,154)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



Cash and cash equivalents, end Of PEriOd . .omeervviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e

SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollars)

Six months ended

June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 (Restated)
Operating activities
ConSOlAAtEd INCOME ......ccuviiiiiiciie et eeceeee ettt ettt ettt e et e e e aae e ebe e e ete e eabeesnbeesnreeas $ 174,344 $ 3848
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskl irs@perating activities:
Net realized and UNrealized gaiNS ...... ..o (166,408) (21,873)
Gain on de-consolidation of collateral finance Ci...............cccciiiiiiii - (1,150,114)
Change in value of long term debt at fair ValuG..ee.....cooooveeeeiiiiii e, 15,246 -
Gain on extinguishment of debt............oceeei i - (53,545)
Changes in value of embedded derivatives, Net............vvviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e, (432) (293,620)
Amortization of deferred acqUISItioN COSES ..uuuuuniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir e 11,493 29,384
Amortization of present value of in-force buSINESS...........cccccciiiiiiiiiice e, 1,583 749
Write-off of fixed assets associated with the sdlthe Acquired BUSINESS..........ccevvvvveenennn. - 6,289
Amortization of deferred tranSACION COSES . nnurrrrriiiiiiiiiiieiia e 1,233 1,536
Depreciation Of fIXeA @SSELS......oiii i 254 861
(O] ][0 g =3 0[] £ 1S PP URPRPTPP TR 345 286
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued INterest reCeIVADIE ...........o i e (2,943) 0,414
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable............ccccccciii, 9,070 118,908
Deferred aCqUISItION COSES.....uuuuuiiiiiiiirrerrneeerereeree e e e e e s s e s s s s st reeeeaeeeeeeesaenannnnnns (3,751) 23,906
Deferred tax assets and lIabilitIES ........cuumeeereereriierieeeee i e e e (2,233) 49,838
(@1 =T = TSI T £SO 388 (257,068)
Embedded derivative assets at fair Value ...cccccecoieviiiiiiiiii e 228 -
Current income tax receivable and payable .ccccce..evvvvviiiiiiiii 12,610 109
Reserves for future policy benefits, net of amouwet®verable from reinsurers................. (7,913) (2,073,253)
Funds withheld at INTEIEST ........oii e 16,801 194,321
Interest sensitive contract lIabilitiesS ... .eeeeeiiiiii e (3,123) 0(876)
Accounts payable and other liabilities ..., (21,400) (249,347
Embedded derivative liabilities at fair ValUS. .............cccoeeeeeeeiieeece e 205 293,620
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtVities...............ccveveeeveeereeeeeeeeeeee s 48,597 (540,527)
Investing activities
Purchase of fixed maturity iNVESIMENES..... oo (416,122) (42B7)
Proceeds from sales and maturity of fixed matuntestments .........cccccceeeeeeiiiiiiicccccnnnes 433,765 703,387
Proceeds from sale and maturity of preferred StOCK..........ccovvviveeeeeeiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 1,419 2,503
Purchase of and proceeds from other iNVEStMENES............cc.coeeeeeeieeeeie e 875 863
Net cash provided by iNVEStiNG ACHVILIES .......c.cc.eoeeieieieee e 19,937 280,676
Financing activities
Withdrawals from interest sensitive contract liil@h ... (50,153) (119,111)
Redemption of non-cumulative perpetual preferretesd..........cooccviiiiiiiiiieee, (970) -
Net cash used in fINANCING ACHVIIES........ccoeeereeieeeeeeeeeeeee e (51,123) (119,111)
Net change in cash and cash equIValeNtS ..o 17,411 $378,962)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of PErQQ.............ccccveeieeveeeeee e 390,025 824,613
$ 407,436 $ 445,651

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)

June 30, 2010

1. Organization and Business
Organization

Scottish Re Group Limited (“SRGL”, the “Company”wé&”, “our” and “us”) is a holding company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islanidls @aur principal executive office in Bermuda. Thgh our
operating subsidiaries, we are principally engaigethe reinsurance of life insurance, annuities anduity-type
products. We have principal operating companié€da@rmuda, the Cayman Islands, Ireland, and theedrtates.

Run Off Strategy

In 2008, we ceased writing new business and ndtifigr existing clients that we would not be accaptiny
new reinsurance risks under existing reinsuraneatiers, thereby placing our remaining treaties ito-off. We
expect to continue to pursue a run-off strategy tfeg remaining business, whereby we continue teivec
premiums, pay claims and perform key activities eindur remaining reinsurance treaties. Throughdgmt
management of investments, reinsurance cash flosoperating expenses, our goal is to continueatisfg our
reinsurance and other obligations and to maintainisia based capital ratio above the company acltawel
prescribed by Delaware law and above any risk basggtal-based recapture thresholds in our reimsera
agreements with ceding companies. No assurancebegiven that we will be successful in implemegtthis
strategy.

While pursuing our run-off strategy, we magnh time to time, if opportunities arise, purchaseprivately
negotiated transactions, open market purchasey ondans of general solicitations, tender offersottrerwise,
additional amounts of our outstanding securitied atter liabilities. Any such purchases will depem a variety
of factors including, but not limited, to availabterporate liquidity, capital requirements and aative pricing
levels. The amounts involved in any such transastindividually or in the aggregate, may be materFor further
discussion on our outstanding securities, see KotBebt Obligations and Other Funding Arrangemeéatsl Note
16, “Subsequent Events”. Further, the Companyicoes to explore ways to increase enterprise vaicieding
consideration from time to time of transactions fbe sale or disposition of our businesses or sssdtich
transactions individually or in the aggregate maymmaterial.

Regulatory Considerations

We currently operate with certain regulatory caasits in respect of Scottish Re (U.S.), Inc. (“SRSur
primary U.S. reinsurance subsidiary. In connectidth the receipt by SRUS in late 2008 of a pemxitstatutory
accounting practice related to the reduction frahility for reinsurance ceded to an unauthorizesuaning insurer
(the “Permitted Practice”), SRUS consented to teguance by the Delaware Department of Insurance (th
“Department”) on January 5, 2009, of an Order op&uision against SRUS (the “Order of Supervisiorit)
accordance with 18 Del. C. §85942. The Order ofe®upion required, among other things, the Depantiae
consent to any transaction by SRUS outside thenargicourse of business and any transaction witkargr
distribution or payment to its affiliates. Theginal Order of Supervision subsequently was amemahedreplaced
with an Extended and Amended Order of Supervigiated April 3, 2009 (the “Amended Order”), which eds
and clarifies certain matters contained within tr@inal Order of Supervision. See Note 12, “Redody and
Rating Agencies”.

Business

We have written reinsurance business that is whallpartially retained in one or more of our rei@ce
subsidiaries. With the sale of our Wealth Managentmisiness and Life Reinsurance International Segrin
2008, and the subsequent sale of a block of indalidife reinsurance business in our Life ReinsaeaiNorth
America Segment (as more fully defined in Noteth®, “Acquired Business”) in the first quarter of02) operating
decisions and performance assessments of the Cgngyannow performed without reference to any sdpara



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
1. Organization and Business (continued)

segments. Accordingly, we do not present inforamatibout distinct operating segments for periotes danuary 1,
2009. For further discussion on the sale of alblaftindividual life reinsurance business in oufeLReinsurance
North America Segment, see Note 13, “Sale of aBtfd_ife Reinsurance North America Business”.

We have assumed risks associated with primaryriferance, annuities and annuity-type policies. réilesure
mortality, investment, persistency and expensesrizk United States life insurance and reinsurar@apanies.
Most of the reinsurance assumed is through autontaaties, but in 2006 we also began assuming risk a
facultative basis. We suspended bidding for nesirmss on March 3, 2008, and at that time, we bésggrnng
notices cancelling the acceptance of new reinseraisks for all open reinsurance treaties. Theiness we
historically have written falls into two categoridsaditional Solutions and Financial Solutionsdasailed below.

Traditional SolutionsWe reinsure the mortality risk on life insuramaicies written by primary insurers. The
business often is referred to as traditional lilginsurance. We wrote our Traditional Solutions bess
predominantly on an automatic basis. This meansvileaautomatically reinsured all policies written & ceding
company that met the underwriting criteria spedifie the treaty with the ceding company. As disedsherein, we
completed in 2009 the sale to Hannover Re of thguiked Business, which business generally was agfarur
Traditional Solutions business.

Financial Solutions Financial Solutions include contracts under whish assumed the investment and
persistency risks of existing, as well as newlytter, blocks of business that improve the finanp@ition of our
clients by increasing their capital availabilitydastatutory surplus. The products reinsured incladeuities and
annuity-type products, cash value life insurancd, da a lesser extent, disability products that iar@ pay-out
phase. This line of business includes acquiredtisolsl products in which we provided our clients hwigxit
strategies for discontinued lines of business,eddslocks of business, or lines of business notigig a good fit
for a client’s growth strategies.

Life insurance products that we reinsure includarlyerenewable term, term with multi-year guarastee
ordinary life and variable life. Retail annuityoplucts that we reinsure include fixed deferred &msuand variable
annuities.

For these products, we wrote reinsurance genemallthe form of yearly renewable term, coinsurance o
modified coinsurance. Under yearly renewable temm,share only in the mortality risk for which weceive a
premium. In a coinsurance or modified coinsurasrangement, we generally share proportionatebllimaterial
risks inherent in the underlying policies, incluglimortality, lapses and investments. Under sucheagents, we
agree to indemnify the primary insurer for all opartion of the risks associated with the undedyinsurance
policy in exchange for a proportionate share ofpuens. Coinsurance differs from modified coinswemwith
respect to the ownership of the assets suppotti@gedserves. Under our coinsurance arrangememtership of
these assets is transferred to us, whereas in imdifoinsurance arrangements, the ceding compa@aynse
ownership of these assets, but we share in thetiment income and risk associated with the assets.

As discussed above, however, we have ceased wriéngreinsurance treaties and no longer are acceptiy
new reinsurance risks under existing treaties atraats with ceding companies.
2. Basis of presentation
Basis of Presentation

Accounting Principles - Our consolidated financsdtements are prepared in accordance with acogunti

principles generally accepted in the United Stated&merica (“U.S. GAAP”) for interim financial infanation.
Accordingly, they do not include all the informati@nd footnotes required by US GAAP for annual rimal



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
2. Basis of presentation (continued)

statements. These unaudited consolidated finasta&ments should be read in conjunction with tb#gannual
consolidated financial statements and notes théoetihe year ended December 31, 2009.

Restatement of Prior Financial Statements - Duttiegfourth quarter of 2009, we identified an elirothe tax
accounting following the sale of the Acquired Besis to Hannover Re of $49.8 million, representiefgiaded tax
liabilities that reverse following the expiratiof et operating losses in applicable jurisdictiosis error caused
us to understate income tax expense as of MarcR(BB. We restated the income statement and gg@rpir share
amounts in the first quarter of 2009 and six morghgded June 30, 2009 to reflect the increase ianiectax
expense of $49.8 million. The restatement of thier financial statements as a result of the eimdax accounting
increased our shareholders deficit as of June G809 Zrom $521.6 million to $571.4 million, and deased our
basic and diluted earnings per share attributablerdinary shareholders for the six months endex B0, 2009
from $27.22 per share and $8.65 per share, respBgtito $26.50 per share and $8.42 per shareectsply.
There was no impact to our year ended December2G@9 net income or shareholders’ deficit because th
adjustment was properly recorded in the annualaaaed financial statements.

Comprehensive Income — There are no items of atberprehensive income included in the consolidated
statements of income and, therefore, net incomibatidble to ordinary shareholders is the sameoagpecehensive
income attributable to ordinary shareholders.

Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Entity — dontrolling interest represents 5% of Scottish Life
Corporation (“SRLC"), a U.S. reinsurance subsidi@ingt is not owned by SRGL. The consolidated faian
statements include all assets, liabilities, reverara expenses of SRLC. In accordance with FASB A&pic 810,
references in these consolidated financial statésrtemet income attributable to SRGL, net incortebatable to
ordinary shareholders and shareholders’ equityidlefattributable to SRGL do not include noncotitng
interests, which we now report separately.

Going Concern - These consolidated interim findnsi@tements and the annual consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2009 have been pdepsing accounting principles applicable to a g@ancern,
which contemplates the realization of assets aad#tisfaction of liabilities and commitments ie flormal course
of business. Our ability to continue as a goingceon is dependent upon our ability to successfoibet our
obligations in a manner that addresses ongoingatgy requirements and capital, liquidity and atéral needs.
There can be no assurance that any of the actiertsawe taken or plan to take will be successfsuipplying funds
in amounts and at times necessary to meet ouditguiequirements in future periods. These constdid financial
statements do not give effect to any adjustmentsetmrded amounts and their classification whichuldobe
necessary if we were unable to continue as a gmngern.

In the event that for any reason we fail to complth the Department’'s Amended Order, or in the ¢vbha
financial condition of SRUS materially was to dedeate, the Department may take action to seizérobof SRUS
under applicable insurance law. Such a seizurddyolace control of all management decisions of SRudth the
Department, including with respect to controlliresh flows, settling claims and paying obligatiorihe primary
objective of the Department would be to protect theerests of the ceding insurers (and additionafigir
policyholders) with whom SRUS has contracted andld/aot be to protect the interests of SRGL, SALIkE
shareholders or any other stakeholders of the Compa& seizure of SRUS would have numerous consempse
including potentially triggering ceding company apture rights on reinsurance agreements with ush Seizure
also may lead to the need for SALIC and SRGL t& $eakruptcy protection.

Consolidation - The consolidated financial statetm@mclude the assets, liabilities and results pdrations of
SRGL and its subsidiaries and all variable inteesgities for which we are the primary beneficiayy defined in
FASB ASC 810-10. All significant inter-company teattions and balances have been eliminated on lgdetsan.
We consolidate two non-recourse securitizationgkn@®y Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liabilityompany
(“Orkney 1") and Orkney Re Il plc, a special purpogehicle incorporated under the laws of Irelarfdrkhey Re



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
2. Basis of presentation (continued)

II"). Effective January 1, 2009, we no longer colidated Ballantyne Re plc (“Ballantyne Re”). Fauorther
discussion on Orkney I, Orkney Il and Ballantyne, Ree Note 14, “Collateral Finance Facilities”. fefive
October 8, 2009, we consolidated the Stingray Fassugh Trust and the Stingray Investor Trust,Sete 7 “Debt
Obligations and Other Funding Arrangements”.

Estimates, Risks and Uncertainties - The preparaifoconsolidated financial statements in confoyniith
U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimatesasadmptions that affect the amounts reported én th
consolidated financial statements and accompanyioigs. Actual results could differ materially frothose
estimates and assumptions used by management. @tisignificant assumptions are for:

* investment valuation;

» accounting for derivative instruments;

» assessment of risk transfer for structured inswamel reinsurance contracts;
» estimates of premiums;

» valuation of present value of in-force business;

» establishment of reserves for future policy besgfit

e amortization of deferred acquisition costs;

* retrocession arrangements and amounts recoverabteréinsurers;

* interest sensitive contract liabilities;

* long term debt at fair value; and

* income taxes, deferred taxes and determinationeofaluation allowance.

We review and revise these estimates as approphateadjustments made to these estimates arectreden
the period the estimates are revised.

All tabular amounts are reported in thousands otddnStates dollars, except share and per shaee diats
otherwise noted.

3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Elasure

In January 2010, the FASB issued an updateduire a number of additional disclosures reiggréair value
measurements. Specifically, the update requiresparting entity to disclose the amounts of sigaifictransfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 of the three tier Yailue hierarchy and the reasons for these transeraell as the
reasons for any transfers in or out of Level 3e@if/e for annual and interim periods beginningraBecember 15,
2009. The update also requires information in #wonciliation of recurring Level 3 measurementsutlpairchases,
sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross é&ffsctive for annual and interim periods beginnafter December
15, 2010. We adopted this update in its entiratgluding early adoption of the additional Levelr8ormation,
effective January 1, 2010. The adoption of thisatpdhad no effect on our financial position or hsswof
operations.

FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation

In June 2009, the FASB issued an update to FASB A8fic 810. This update requires an enterprise to
perform an analysis to determine whether the erigers variable interest or variable interests give controlling
financial interest in a VIE. This update also regsiongoing reassessments of whether an enterpttise primary
beneficiary of a VIE and is effective as of the ibegng of each reporting entity’s first annual refireg period that
begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periadthin the first annual reporting period, and foterim and
annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier agpiin was prohibited. We adopted this update éffectanuary 1,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

2010. The adoption of this update had no effecbwnfinancial position or results of operation&s a result of
adopting this update, we now separately disclosé¢henConsolidated Balance Sheet of SRGL, the asdetse
consolidated VIE that can only be used to settlggations of the VIE and the liabilities of the amlidated VIE for
which creditors have no recourse on the generaluats of SRGL.

4, Investments

Trading investments are recorded at fair markate/aUnrealized gains and losses on trading invassrere
included in earnings. Interest is recorded baggmhithe stated coupon rate as a component of mestiment
income. Cash flows for trading securities are sifeed in Investing Activities on the Consolidat&tatement of
Cash Flows based on the nature and purpose fohuimicrelated securities were acquired.

The portion of net unrealized gains for the threenths ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, that relateadimg
securities still held at the reporting date is $7fillion and $120.2 million, respectively.

The portion of net unrealized gains (losses) fer $hx months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, treteseto
trading securities still held at the reporting dat§140.0 million and ($13.0) million, respective

5. Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC 820 establishes a framework for measufairgvalue, establishes a fair value hierarchy dase
the quality of inputs used to measure fair valum eanhances disclosure requirements for fair vadlaasurements.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unatjdsquoted prices in active markets for identicsdeds or
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowesirfly to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurerserithe three
levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASED &re described below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instrumemtaictive markets.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instrumentsactive markets; quoted prices for identical or &Emi
instruments in markets that are not active; and ehddrived valuations in which all significant irfpuand
significant value drivers are observable in actiarkets.

Level 3 — Model derived valuations in which onemore significant inputs or significant value driseare
unobservable.

As required by FASB ASC 820, when the inputs usetheasure fair value fall within different leveltbe
hierarchy, the level within which the fair value aserement is categorized is based on the lowest ilgput that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itrety. Thus, a Level 3 fair value measurement nmajude inputs
that are observable (Level 1 and 2) and unobsexvdleivel 3).

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instrumemthose value is based on quoted market pricesasiglublic
equities and actively traded mutual fund investment

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that walued by independent pricing services or valusidg
models or other valuation methodologies. These isodee primarily industry-standard models that oders
various inputs, such as interest rate, credit sbraad foreign exchange rates for the underlyingrfaial
instruments. All significant inputs are observaldederived from observable, information in the kedplace or are
supported by observable levels at which transastare executed in the marketplace. Financial ingnis in this
category primarily include: certain public and e corporate fixed maturity and equity securitggsyernment or
agency securities; certain mortgage and asset-aga@urities; securities held as collateral; ampleggmted assets.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whéesie value is estimated based on non-binding brgkizes
or internally developed models or methodologiedizitig significant inputs not based on, or corraided by,
readily available market information. This categprimarily consists of certain less liquid fixed tudty and equity
securities where we cannot corroborate the sigmifizaluation inputs with market observable dataditionally,
the Company’s embedded derivatives, all of whighassociated with reinsurance treaties, are diedsif Level 3
since their values include significant unobservabiputs associated with actuarial assumptions ceggr
policyholder behavior.

At each reporting period, all assets and liabgitae classified in their entirety based on theelsiwevel of
input that is significant to the fair value measnest. Our assessment of the significance of aquéati input to the
fair value measurement in its entirety requiregjudnt, and considers factors specific to the awskdbility, such
as the relative impact on the fair value as a teduhcluding a particular input.

The majority of our fixed maturity securities usevel 2 inputs for the determination of fair valUdese fair
values are obtained primarily from independentipgcservices, when available, utilizing Level 2 it Where
pricing services do not provide fair values, thécipg services utilize proprietary pricing models produce
estimates of fair value primarily utilizing Leveli@puts along with certain Level 3 inputs.

The proprietary pricing models include matrix pmigiwhere we discount expected cash flows utilizimarket
interest rates obtained from third-party sourcesetaon the credit quality and duration of the unsient to fair
value. For securities that may not be reliably guiazising internally developed pricing models, brofpeotes are
obtained. These broker quotes represent an ggé put the assumptions used to establish the/édire may not
be observable and represent Level 3 inputs.

Long term debt at fair value has been valued ukixgl 2 input for the determination of fair valu@he fair
value was derived with reference to traded prioesdentical liabilities.

The interest rate swap derivative has been valgadyu_evel 2 inputs including forward interest satierived
from observable information in the market place.

The embedded derivatives in funds withheld at egerinclude the embedded derivatives resulting from
assumed modified coinsurance (“modco”) or coinsceafunds withheld reinsurance arrangements. Theles
are based upon the difference between the faievalihe underlying assets backing the modco cd<umithheld
receivable and the fair value of the underlyingilies.

The fair value of the asset generally is based wimservable market data using valuation methoddasio
those used for assets held directly by us. Thevidue of the liabilities is determined by usingnket observable
swap rates as well as some unobservable inputs a&sucttuarial assumptions regarding policyholdérabier.
These assumptions require significant managemedgnjent.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following tables set forth our assets and lids that are measured at fair value on a reegrbasis as of
the date indicated:

June 30, 2010

(U.S. dollars in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments
GoVvernment SECUNLIES .....eevvvvveereeee s eeeeeeee B 852 $ - $ 850 % 0.2
Corporate SECUNLIES.........cceeeeeeeeiiremmmmmr e e e eeeeeenn 1,229.9 - 1,118.7 111.2
Municipal bonds..........cccvviiiiiiiiiiiir v, 60.0 - 60.0 -
Mortgage and asset backed securities..... .o 1,729.4 - 1,244.7 484.7
Preferred StoCK ..........ueeveiiiiiiiiiiii 79.4 - 22.8 56.6
EQUILY et 43 3.4 - -
Derivatives — interest rate SWap......cccccceeceeeeeeennn. 39.1 - 39.1 -
Funds withheld at interest — embedded derivatives 0.2 - - 0.2
Total assets at fair value .................cmmmveeeeeeneene. 9 3,226.6 $ 34 $ 25703 $ 652.9
Funds withheld at interest — embedded derivatives. (35.5) - - (35.5)
Long term debt at fair value ...............ccceeeeii. (60.2) - (60.2) -
Total liabilities at fair value..............coeeevrrverennnn. $ (95.7) % - 8 (60.2) $ (35.5)

December 31, 2009

(U.S. dollars in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
INVESTMENLS ... e
Government SECUNtIES ........ccceceeeevvir e e e P 1046 $ - 8 1044 $ 0.2
Corporate SECUNLIES.........ooeiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 1,166.3 - 1,033.0 133.3
Municipal bonds............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieececee 43.8 - 43.8 -
Mortgage and asset backed securities..... . 1,673.5 - 1,200.7 472.8
Preferred StOCK .........eevviiiiiiiiiiii e 77.4 - 24.0 53.4
EQUILY .o 3.7 3.7 - -
Derivatives — interest rate SWap...........ceeoeeeeeveevens 25.9 - 25.9 -
Total assets at fair Value .................commeveevereenens 9 3,095.2 $ 3.7$ 24318 $ 659.7
Embedded derivatives ...............cooeeer o e eennnnnns (35.7) - - (35.7)
Long term debt at fair value (55.1) - (55.1) -
Total liabilities at fair value..............ccceeeeeveeeeenne... $ (90.8) $ - $ (55.1) $ (35.7)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following tables present additional informatimmout assets measured at fair value on a reclrdasig and
for which we have utilized significant unobservafilevel 3) inputs to determine fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservale Inputs (Level 3) for the six month period endedlune 30, 2010

Funds
Withheld at
Mortgage Interest —
and asset Embedded
(U.S. dollars in Government Corporate Municipal backed Preferred Derivatives,
millions) securities securities bonds securities stock Net Total
Beginning balance at
January 1, 201Q..... $ 02 % 1333 $ - $ 4728 $ 534 $ (35.7) $ 6240
Total realized and
unrealized gains
(losses) included
in net income....... - 3.4 - 53.3 3.2 0.4 60.3
Purchases,
issuances and
settlements............ - (23.1) 9.9 (33.3) - - (46.5)
Transfers in and/or
out of Level 3....... - (2.4) (9.9) (8.1) - - (20.4)
Ending balance at
June 30, 2010......... $ 02% 1112 § - % 484.7 $ 56.6 $ (35.3) $ 6174

In 2010, reclassifications impacting Level 3 finemhdnstruments are reported as transfers in (otithe Level
3 category as of the end of the quarter in whiehtthnsfer occurs. The portion of net unrealizedsgyfor the three
and six months ended June 30, 2010 that relateading securities still held at the reporting diat&22.5 million
and $52.3 million, respectively, for Level 3.

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservae Inputs (Level 3) for the year ended
December 31, 2009

Other
Liabilities at
Fixed Fair Value —
Maturities & Embedded
(U.S. dollars in millions) Preferred Stock Derivatives Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2009 .......ccc....  $ 9216 % (3475) $ 574.1
Transfers attributable to deconsolidation of
Ballantyne Re........ccccoovviiiiiiiiicmeeee e (108.6) - (108.6)
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in net inCome...........ccccceveeeeeeeeeeeeennn, (16.9) 311.8 294.9
Purchases, issuances and settlements.............. (43.8) - (43.8)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3.........coeeeeen.... (92.6) - (92.6)
Ending balance at December 31, 2009................ $ 659.7 $ 357 % 624.0
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June 30, 2010
5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

In 2009, reclassifications impacting Level 3 finmhdinstruments are reported as transfers in (ofithe Level
3 category as of beginning of the quarter in whiehtransfer occurs.

We review the fair value hierarchy classificatiampsarterly. Changes in the observability of the aibin
attributes may result in a reclassification of agrfinancial assets or liabilities.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As discussed above, fair value of financial asaet$ liabilities is estimated under FASB ASC 82(hgsihe
following methods and assumptions:

0] Fixed maturity investments and preferred stock aaeied at fair value. See Note 5, “Fair Value
Measurements” for a description of the methodolegied assumptions used to determine the fair \@lfiaancial
instruments carried at fair value.

(i) Other investments carrying value approximatesvialue.

(iii) Funds withheld at interest represent fixed matuntestments held by ceding companies and the fair
values are consistent with the methodologies asdmagtions used to determine the fair value of firegturities
carried at fair value.

(iv) Fair values for collateral finance facilities pitae the utilization of market observable inputar
any notes issued by the collateral finance faesitihat are wrapped by guarantors, we defined rifteofivalue as
the combination of the issued note and guaranteea Aesult, the fair value of the collateral finarfacilities
incorporates the value of the guarantee, includomgideration of the non-performance risk of thargators.

(v) Fair value of the interest rate swap derivative theen calculated with reference to observable marke
inputs. See Note 5, “Fair Value Measurements”datescription of the methodologies and assumptisesl to
determine the fair value of financial instrumerasried at fair value.

(vi) Long term debt at fair value (i.e. outstanding PHsough Certificates held by third parties) have
been derived with reference to traded prices feniital liabilities. See Note 5, Fair Value Measuents” for a
description of the methodologies and assumptioad s determine the fair value of financial instents carried at
fair value.

(vii) Fair values for our long term debt of trust preferisecurities were determined with reference to
similar quoted securities and settlements of o@wmnpany long term debt during 2010 and 2009.

(viii) Interest sensitive contract liabilities include éstment contracts. The fair value of investment
contracts, which exclude significant mortality risk based on the cash surrender value of theliliabias an
approximation of the exit market.

(ix) Embedded derivative assets and liabilities areiaghrat fair value. See Note 5, “Fair Value

Measurements” for a description of the methodolegied assumptions used to determine the fair \@l€isancial
instruments carried at fair value.
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June 30, 2010

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

June 30, 2010

December 31, 2009

Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
(U.S. dollars in thousands) Value Value Value Value
Assets
Fixed maturity investments...... $ 3,104,484 $ 3,104,484 $ 2,988,164 $ 2,988,164
Preferred stock ...............c....... 79,373 79,373 77,410 77,410
Other investments..................... 20,376 20,376 21,482 21,482
Funds withheld at interest
(excluding cash)................... 591,699 507,902 608,500 513,419
Derivatives — interest
rate SWap ....ccceeeeveveeeeeererennnns 39,111 39,111 25,924 25,924
Embedded derivative
assets at fair value............... 228 228 - -
Liabilities
Collateral finance facilities....... $ 1,300,000 $ 846,229 $ 1,300,000 $ 907,710
Long term debt at fair
Value ..o, 60,180 60,180 55,068 55,068
Long termdebt..........cccoveeeens 129,500 42,942 129,500 32,375
Investment contracts............. 1,465,831 1,441,386 1,518,365 1,485,554
Embedded derivative
liabilities at fair value.......... 35,527 35,527 35,732 35,732
7. Debt Obligations and Other Funding Arrangements
Long-term debt consists of:
(U.S. dollars in thousands) June 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Capital securities due 2032.............eevcemmmerveeeeeeeennne, $ 17,500 $ 17,500
Preferred trust securities due 2033 ........ccccoemieveeeennn. 20,000 20,000
Trust preferred securities due 2033 .......ccocccceeeeeennnn. 10,000 10,000
Trust preferred securities due 2034 .......cccocceeeeeee.. 32,000 32,000
Trust preferred securities due 2034 ........cccceeeene...... 50,000 50,000
Long term debt at par Value ..............ocmemrevevercscrene 9 129,500 $ 129,500
Outstanding Pass-Through Certificates.......ceccu...... $ 60,180 $ 55,068
Long term debt at fair value ..............c.cceeeeevevevreennnnn $ 60,180 $ 55,068

Capital Securities Due 2032

On December 4, 2002, Scottish Holdings StatutonysiTt, a Connecticut statutory business trust (i@ap
Trust”) issued and sold in a private offering amr@gate of $17.5 million Floating Rate Capital Sé®s (the
“Capital Securities”). All of the common sharestbé Capital Trust are owned by Scottish Holdings, (“SHI"),

our wholly owned subsidiary.

The Capital Securities mature on December 4, 2088y are redeemable in whole or in part at any @fter
December 4, 2007. Interest is payable quarterly ette equivalent to three-month LIBOR plus 4%.JAhe 30,
2010 and December 31, 2009, the interest rates &BB% and 4.25%, respectively. The Capital Truay mefer
payment of the interest for up to 20 consecutivartguly periods, but no later than December 4, 203% deferred
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7. Debt Obligations and Other Funding Arrangements (catinued)

payments would accrue interest quarterly on a camg@ed basis if SHI defers interest on the Debestuaiwe
December 4, 2032 (as described below).

The sole assets of the Capital Trust consist of iBilBon principal amount of Floating Rate Debemsir(the
“Debentures”) issued by SHI. The Debentures maturddecember 4, 2032 and interest is payable qladéra
rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR plus 4%. AheB0, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the interess raere
4.53% and 4.25%, respectively. SHI may defer payréithe interest for up to 20 consecutive quayteeriods,
but no later than December 4, 2032. Any deferrganaants would accrue interest quarterly on a comgedrbasis.
SHI may redeem the Debentures at any time afteelber 4, 2007 and in the event of certain chanyéaxi or
investment company law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under thedd¢ures and distributions and other payments dube
Capital Securities.

Preferred Trust Securities Due 2033

On October 29, 2003, Scottish Holdings, Inc. Stau@rust I, a Connecticut statutory businesstt(iSapital
Trust II") issued and sold in a private offering aggregate of $20 million Preferred Trust Secwsitthe “Preferred
Trust Securities”). All of the common shares of @aprrust 1l are owned by SHI.

The Preferred Trust Securities mature on OctobeR@93. They are redeemable in whole or in paangttime
after October 29, 2008. Interest is payable qugrtdra rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR plu&536. At June
30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the interest vetes 4.48% and 4.20%, respectively. Prior to Oat@8% 2008,
interest cannot exceed 12.45%. Capital Trust Il ohefier payment of the interest for up to 20 conseewuarterly
periods, but no later than October 29, 2033. Anjemled payments would accrue interest quarterlyaon
compounded basis if SHI defers interest on the Zl88ting Rate Debentures due October 29, 2038¢dasribed
below).

The sole assets of Capital Trust Il consist of 624illion principal amount of Floating Rate Debamwisi (the
“2033 Floating Rate Debentures”) issued by SHI. 2883 Floating Rate Debentures mature on OctobeP@33
and interest is payable quarterly at three-monBQR plus 3.95%. At June 30, 2010 and Decembef@Q9, the
interest rates were 4.48% and 4.20%, respecti@H.may defer payment of the interest for up toc@@secutive
quarterly periods, but no later than October 2832M0ny deferred payments would accrue interesttgrg on a
compounded basis. SHI may redeem the 2033 Flo&aig Debentures at any time after October 29, 20@Bin
the event of certain changes in tax or investmentpany law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under thg3®2Bloating Rate Debentures and distributions ahéro
payments due on the Preferred Trust Securities.

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2033

On November 14, 2003, GPIC Holdings Inc. Statutdryst, a Delaware statutory business trust (“GPIC
Trust”) issued and sold in a private offering agragate of $10 million Trust Preferred Securitige (‘2033 Trust
Preferred Securities”). All of the common share&&C Trust are owned by SHI.

The 2033 Trust Preferred Securities mature on $de 30, 2033. They are redeemable in whole oaih gt
any time after September 30, 2008. Interest is lpayquarterly at a rate equivalent to three-montBQR plus
3.90%. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009intkeest rates were 4.43% and 4.15%, respectiveBIC
Trust may defer payment of the interest for up @occ@nsecutive quarterly periods, but no later tBeptember 30,
2033.
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Any deferred payments would accrue interest qugrtam a compounded basis if SHI defers interestten
Junior Subordinated Notes due September 30, 2@38escribed below).

The sole assets of GPIC Trust consist of $10.3ianilprincipal amount of Junior Subordinated Nottee (
“Junior Subordinated Notes”) issued by SHI. TheiduSubordinated Notes mature on September 30, 2083
interest is payable quarterly at three-month LIB@IRs 3.90%. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 20@9,
interest rates were 4.43% and 4.15%, respecti@Hy.may defer payment of the interest for up toc@@secutive
quarterly periods, but no later than Septembe2883. Any deferred payments would accrue intereattgrly on a
compounded basis. SHI may redeem the Junior Sutzdedl Notes at any time after September 30, 2008rathe
event of certain changes in tax or investment compaw.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under theiatluSubordinated Notes and distributions and other
payments due on the trust preferred securities.

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2034

On May 12, 2004, Scottish Holdings, Inc. Statutdryst Ill, a Connecticut statutory business tru§tapital
Trust 111") issued and sold in a private offering aggregate of $32 million Trust Preferred Secsitithe “2034
Trust Preferred Securities”). All of the common gsaof Capital Trust Il are owned by SHI.

The 2034 Trust Preferred Securities mature on 1une€034. They are redeemable in whole or in pasng
time after June 17, 2009. Interest is payable gqugrat a rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR pBu80%. At
June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the intaatstwas 4.33% and 4.05%, respectively. Prior te Jufy 2009,
interest could not exceed 12.50%. Capital Trustmty defer payment of the interest for up to 20secntive
quarterly periods, but no later than June 17, 2084 deferred payments would accrue interest qdgrten a
compounded basis if SHI defers interest on the 28l84ting Rate Debentures due June 17, 2034 (agided
below).

The sole assets of Capital Trust Il consist of $3Bion principal amount of Floating Rate Debemsir(the
“2034 Floating Rate Debentures”) issued by SHI. 2684 Floating Rate Debentures mature on June(34 and
interest is payable quarterly at three-month LIB@IRs 3.80%. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 20@9,
interest rate was 4.33% and 4.05%, respectivelgr By June 17, 2009, interest could not excee8. SHI may
defer payment of the interest for up to 20 conseeuguarterly periods, but no later than June 10342 Any
deferred payments would accrue interest quarterlg compounded basis. SHI may redeem the 2034igoRate
Debentures at any time after June 17, 2009 artteievent of certain changes in tax or investmemypamy law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under thg42Bloating Rate Debentures and distributions ahero
payments due on the 2034 Trust Preferred Securities

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2034

On December 18, 2004, SFL Statutory Trust |, a Wafe statutory business trust (“SFL Trust I") isswnd
sold in a private offering an aggregate of $50 iomll Trust Preferred Securities (the “December 203dst
Preferred Securities” and, together with the 2084sT Preferred Securities, the 2033 Trust PrefeBeclirities, the
Preferred Trust Securities and the Capital Seestitthe “Capital and Trust Preferred Securitie&l). of the
common shares of SFL Trust | are owned by Scoftishncial (Luxembourg) S.a.r.| (“SFL").

The December 2034 Trust Preferred Securities matui@ecember 15, 2034. They are redeemable in vdrole
in part at any time after December 15, 2009. listeiepayable quarterly at a rate equivalent ted¢fmonth LIBOR
plus 3.50%. At June 30, 2010 and December 31, 20@9nterest rate was 4.03% and 3.75%, respegtiPeior to
December 15, 2009, interest could not exceed 12.8Ph Trust | may defer payment of the interestudprto 20
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consecutive quarterly periods, but no later thandbeber 15, 2034. Any deferred payments would acitriggest
quarterly on a compounded basis if SFL defers ésteon the 2034 Floating Rate Debentures due Dezmefri)
2034 (as described below).

The sole assets of SFL Trust | consist of $51.8ionilprincipal amount of Floating Rate Debenturéee (
“December 2034 Floating Rate Debentures”) issue&bly. The December 2034 Floating Rate Debenturdsrma
on December 15, 2034 and interest is payable quagethree-month LIBOR plus 3.50%. At June 301@ and
December 31, 2009, the interest rate was 4.03%3afkd0, respectively. Prior to December 15, 200@rast could
not exceed 12.50%. SFL may defer payment of therést for up to 20 consecutive quarterly periods,ro later
than December 15, 2034. Any deferred payments wacttue interest quarterly on a compounded baBis.nsay
redeem the December 2034 Floating Rate Debenttresyatime after December 15, 2009 and in the eweént
certain changes in tax or investment company law.

SALIC has guaranteed SFL’s obligations under thedb®er 2034 Floating Rate Debentures and distabsiti
and other payments due on the December 2034 TrefdrRed Securities.

Stingray Investor Trust and Stingray Pass-Throughust (together “Stingray”)

On January 12, 2005, SALIC entered into a put agese with the Stingray Investor Trust for an agateg
value of $325 million, which put agreement relates$325 million aggregate stated amount of 5.90246sP
Through Certificates (the “Pass-Through Certifisdtéssued by the Stingray Pass-Through Trust (togewith the
Stingray Investor Trust, “Stingray”). Under thents of the put agreement, we acquired an irrevecabt option to
issue funding agreements to the Stingray InvestastTin return for the assets in a portfolio of & commercial

paper.

Since April 14, 2008, this facility has been fulliilized and $325 million of funding agreements &édeen
issued to the Stingray Investor Trust and rematstanding as of June 30, 2010.

Throughout 2009, we acquired Pass-Through Certifecén privately negotiated purchases which represe
reconsideration events under FASB ASC 810-10. ¥é=la quantitative analysis in determining thathibieler of
the majority of the Pass-Through Certificates waalbdorb the majority of the expected gains or BsdeStingray.
As a result of these acquisitions, by October 8§920ve had acquired Pass-Through Certificates wittated
amount of $169.4 million. This holding representieel majority of the Pass-Through Certificatesrefare at that
time we determined we were the primary benefic@rgtingray and we were required to consolidatedstly in
our consolidated financial statements. The codatibn of Stingray has been recorded in accordavite ASC
810-10, which requires us to recognize the assepsied, the liabilities assumed, and any noncdiimgpinterest in
Stingray at the acquisition date, measured at fagivalues as of that date. We are also requivegliminate any
inter-company balances and transactions. The 1@gngfructure includes an interest rate swap (theefest Rate
Swap”) as a mechanism for charging interest to $Abh the funding agreements at a variable intewdst and
paying interest to the Pass-Through Certificateléid at a fixed rate. The Interest Rate Swap isidied in Other
Assets at a fair value of $39.1 million and $25i89iom on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as at By 2010 and
December 31, 2009, respectively. Movements irfaltevalue of the Interest Rate Swap are includedst realized
and unrealized income (losses) in the Consolidatatements of Income.

On December 15, 2009, pursuant to a cash tender tfat had been launched on November 16, 2009, we
acquired $57.3 million in aggregate stated amodirRass-Through Certificates. As a result, as ofebeber 31,
2009, we had repurchased $226.7 million in aggeegtdted amount of the Pass-Through Certificat@sing $98.3
million outstanding with non-affiliated investors.

In January 2010, we acquired in a privately negetidransaction an additional $18.1 million of amgate
stated amount of Pass-Through Certificates, lea$B@?2 million in aggregate stated amount of thesPghrough
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Certificates outstanding with non-affiliated invest as of June 30, 2010. For further discussioistingray, see
Note 16, “Subsequent Events”.

We have elected the fair value option under FASECA25 in respect of the Pass-Through Certificatdd hy
non-affiliated investors. We elected this optianvee believe it will reflect more appropriately thalue of the
liability at subsequent reporting periods. Ther fadlue as at June 30, 2010 and December 31, 26QBeo
outstanding Pass-Through Certificates held by rfélated investors is $60.2 million and $55.1 rialh,
respectively, and is included in long term debfaat value in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. ngéa in fair
value are reflected through earnings. The chamdeii value, for the three and six months endet R0, 2010, of
the Pass-Through Certificates held by non-affilatevestors resulted in losses of $18.0 million 8.2 million,
respectively. See Note 5, “Fair Value Measurenient¥he losses reflect increases in the fair vadti¢he Pass-
through Certificates resulting from the valuatianJane 30, 2010 being based on actual trades aFHasugh
Certificates that took place subsequent to Jun@@100.

Premium Asset Trust Series 2004-4

On March 12, 2004, SALIC entered into an unsectweding agreement with the Premium Asset Trustfor
aggregate of $100 million (the “PATS”). The fundiagreement had a stated maturity of March 12, 2869
“PATS Maturity Date”) and accrued interest at araf three-month LIBOR plus 0.922%, payable on artguly
basis. The amount due under this funding agreemastincluded under interest sensitive contrabilitees on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the first quarter of 2009, we extinguishpdmarily through negotiated repurchases, SALIGisecured
funding agreement payment obligation in respedhefPATS. The extinguishment of PATS securitieguaed
through negotiated repurchases and the settlenfetiteoremaining funding obligation in respect of BATS
securities not repurchased prior to the MaturityeDaere completed for a total consideration of B4illion
compared to the $100 million par value of the PAT®nsequently, in accordance with FASB ASC Topif,86
Transfers and Servicing, we recorded a gain oregtieguishment of the PATS debt of $53.5 millionthe first
quarter of 2009. The funding agreements were dwazdun interest sensitive contract liabilities le taccompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2008.

Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate Céadi Securities and Trust Preferred Securities

In order to preserve liquidity, we began deferringrest payments as of March 4, 2009 on our fhgptate
capital securities and trust preferred securitessied and sold through certain statutory trustsbéshed by us.
These deferrals are permitted by the terms of tlentures governing the securities and have beele mathe
discretion of our Board to preserve liquidity. Witeind to continue to defer such interest paymemtshe duration
of the permitted 20 consecutive quarterly periamaximize liquidity. As of June 30, 2010, we hawerued and
deferred payment of $8.8 million of interest. SHidaSALIC are restricted in their ability to makevidiend
payments in any period where interest payment atiigs on these securities are not current.

For further discussion on the accrued and defepagdnent on our floating rate capital securities &gt
preferred securities subsequent to June 30, 2@&0\ete 16, “Subsequent Events”.

8. Mezzanine Equity
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred Shes
On May 7, 2007, we completed the equity investmeansaction by MassMutual Capital Partners LLC

(“MassMutual Capital”), a member of the MassMutbBalancial Group, and SRGL Acquisition, LDC, an life of
Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. (“Cerberus”)panced by us on November 27, 2006 (the “2007 Nepit&la
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Transaction”). Pursuant to the 2007 New Capitanfaction, MassMutual Capital and Cerberus inveated
aggregate $600 million in us in exchange for 1,000,in the aggregate newly issued Convertible Cativd
Participating Preferred Shares. The gross proceeds $600 million less $44.1 million in closingst®, which
resulted in aggregate net proceeds of $555.9 milli&ach Convertible Cumulative Participating Pnefé Share
has a par value of $0.01 per share with an ingfated value and liquidation preference of $600 gtere, as
adjusted for the accretion of dividends or the paytof dividends or distributions as describedHertelow.

As of June 30, 2010, MassMutual Capital and Cerbdrid in the aggregate approximately 68.7% of our
equity voting power, along with the right to desatmtwo-thirds of the members of our Board.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@ftares are convertible at the option of the holdeany
time, into an aggregate of 150,000,000 ordinaryeshaf SRGL. On the ninth anniversary of issue,@onvertible
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares autoralyiovill convert into an aggregate of 150,000,08@inary
shares if not previously converted. We are notuireqg at any time to redeem the Convertible Cunudat
Participating Preferred Shares for cash, exceghténevent of a liquidation or upon the occurrenta change-in-
control event.

We have accounted for the Convertible Cumulativeiépating Preferred Shares in accordance with BAS
ASC Subtopic 470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversiod &ther Options (“FASB 470-20"), which incorporatel§ F
D-98: “Classification and Measurement of Redeemdabdeurities”. Dividends on the Convertible Cumuwiati
Participating Preferred Shares are cumulative &edete daily on a non-compounding basis at a 2% per
annum on the stated value of $600 million, whetivenot there are profits, surplus, or other fundsilable for the
payment of dividends. Such dividends will be meastdely by increasing the liquidation preference tioé
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred ®isar As of June 30, 2010, the amount of dividerzisesed
pursuant to the terms of the Convertible CumulatRezticipating Preferred Shares is $137.0 millionthe
aggregate, or $137 per share.

Redemption of the Convertible Cumulative PartidimatPreferred Shares is contingent upon a change in
control. Since neither liquidation nor a changeantrol is currently probable, the dividends hawe¢ been accrued
in our consolidated financial statements.

In the event that dividends or distributions arede#&o ordinary shareholders, the holders of thevEdible
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares will reeea dividend or distribution equal to the dividemr
distribution that such holders would have beentledtito receive had the right been exercised toedrall of the
Cumulative Participating Preference Shares to argishares.

To the extent that the Convertible Cumulative Raéting Preferred Shares so participate on aroasested
basis in dividends paid on ordinary shares, a spmeding reduction will be made to the liquidatfmeference for
the Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferi®dares. The Convertible Cumulative Participatimgfétred
Shares have a liquidation preference equal to thitial stated value, as adjusted for (x) the ation of dividends
and (y) any cash payment or payment in propertyigidends or distributions. The holders of Conimset
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares may, amother things, require us to redeem the Convertibl
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares uponaagé-in-control.

Upon a change-in-control, the redemption pricehef €Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferrédu®s is
an amount equal to the greater of (i) the statddevaf the outstanding Convertible Cumulative Rgptiting
Preferred Shares, plus an amount equal to the $uatt accrued dividends through the earlier of {Ag¢ date of
payment of the consideration payable upon a chamgentrol, or (B) the fifth anniversary of the igsdate of the
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred ®aror (ii) the amount that the holder of the Cotibke
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares wouldehbeen entitled to receive with respect to suchgédn-
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control if it had exercised its right to convert at such portion of its Convertible Cumulative ®apating
Preferred Shares for ordinary shares immediatéty po the date of such change-in-control.

The liquidation preference of the Convertible Cuative Participating Preferred Shares (including any
adjustments there to) is not applicable once thev€dible Cumulative Participating Preferred Sharase been
converted into ordinary shares, as described above.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer®dares rank, with respect to payment of dividenas$ a
distribution of assets upon voluntary or involugtiquidation, dissolution or winding-up (a “Liquadion Event”):
(a) senior to our ordinary shares and to each atlass or series of our shares established by tlaed3 the terms of
which do not expressly provide that such class aries ranks senior to or pari passu with the Cdibler
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares as torgey of dividends and distribution of assets updiigaidation
Event; (b) pari passu with each class or seriemioShares, the terms of which expressly provid¢ $hch class or
series ranks pari passu with the Convertible CutiveldParticipating Preferred Shares as to paymédividends
and distribution of assets upon a Liquidation Evemd (c) junior to each other class or serieswf securities
outstanding as of the date of the completion of20@7 New Capital Transaction that ranks seniavuoordinary
shares, and to each class or series of our shheeerms of which expressly provide that suchsctasseries ranks
senior to the Convertible Cumulative Participatiigferred Shares as to payment of dividends ardbdison of
assets upon a Liquidation Event and all classesinpreferred shares outstanding as of the coropletf the 2007
New Capital Transaction.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@&oares conversion price ($4.00 per ordinary shaes
lower than the trading value of $4.66 of our ordinshares on the date of issue. This discount bas hccounted
for as an embedded beneficial conversion featuacaordance with FASB ASC 470-20 which incorpordi€bF
98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities witheBeficial Conversion Features or Contingently Atijbke
Conversion Ratios”, and EITF 00-27, “Application ¢dsue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments”
Accordingly, the Company recognized a $120.8 mill@nbedded beneficial conversion feature, whicluiced the
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred himsue amount shown in Mezzanine Equity and isecdhe
amount of additional paid in capital. Under theaatting guidance above, we had the choice to aedhet full
intrinsic value of the embedded beneficial convardeature out of retained earnings over the naga yerm of the
shares or immediately due to the ability of thedieo$ to convert at their option at any time. Gitles ability of the
holders to convert at any time, we elected to dedtee full intrinsic value of the embedded beniaficonversion
feature on the date of issue. As we did not have ratained earnings on the date of issue, the 812dlion
beneficial conversion feature was accreted outldftebnal paid in capital into Mezzanine Equity.

Pursuant to our Securities Purchase Agreementy ddddgember 26, 2006 (the “Agreement”), with Massivait
Capital and Cerberus, certain representations amlanties were provided relating to our statutocgoanting
records. As discussed in Note 15 “Commitments @odtingencies”, certain statutory accounting ernaese
discovered in 2006 which have resulted in an indéoation claim against us, by MassMutual and Ceubke
Resolution of this claim could result in a changé¢hie conversion formula on these securities.

9. Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares (“Pergtual Preferred Shares”)
Perpetual Preferred Shares

We are authorized to issue 50,000,000 preferregtstud par value $0.01 each.

On June 28, 2005, we priced our offering of 5,000,0hon-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares (the
“Perpetual Preferred Shares”) and entered intorahpise agreement relating to the shares pursuamhith the

underwriters of the offering agreed to purchasestieres. Gross proceeds were $125 million andetlatpenses
were $4.6 million. Settlement of the net proceettuared on July 6, 2005.
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Dividends on the Perpetual Preferred Shares arabpayn a non-cumulative basis at a rate per anofum
7.25% until the dividend payment date in July 20Tbereafter, the dividend rate may be at a fixed determined
through remarketing of the Perpetual Preferred &htr specific periods of varying length not I#ssn six months
or may be at a floating rate reset quarterly basedh predefined set of interest rate benchmarksrind any
dividend period, unless the full dividends for therrent dividend period on all outstanding PerpeRizferred
Shares have been declared or paid, no dividendbmaayaid or declared on our ordinary shares andrdmary
shares or other junior shares may be purchasedemszt or otherwise acquired for consideration. |adation of
dividends on the Perpetual Preferred Shares ishpteth if we fail to meet specified capital adegyaret income or
shareholders’ equity levels.

The Perpetual Preferred Shares do not have a tyatiate and we are not required to redeem the shdrke
Perpetual Preferred Shares are not redeemabletpriody 2010. Subsequent to July 2010, the Peap&referred
Shares will be redeemable at our option, in whalengart, at a redemption price equal to $25.00gb&re, plus
any declared and unpaid dividends at the redemplite, without accumulation of any undeclared dinds. The
Perpetual Preferred Shares are unsecured and sdtedito all indebtedness that does not by itsigerank pari
passu or junior to the Perpetual Preferred Shafid®e holders of the Perpetual Preferred Shares haveoting
rights except with respect to certain fundamentanges in the terms of the Perpetual PreferredeShard in the
case of certain dividend non-payments.

The Perpetual Preferred Shares ratings were withditay Standard & Poor’s, Moody's, Fitch Ratings and
A.M. Best Company in 2009 following our notificatido each of the rating agencies that we wouldomgér be
compensating the agencies for their maintenansedf ratings. See Note 12, “Regulatory and Rakigencies”.

On May 7, 2010, SRGL launched a cash tender offgsurchase any and all of the outstanding Perpetual
Preferred Shares. The tender offer was made tinv@lholders of such Perpetual Preferred Shares tigoterms
and subject to the conditions set forth in the teelaOffer to Purchase, dated May 7, 2010 (as anteibgea
Supplement to Offer to Purchase dated June 8, 20&0;Perpetual Preferred Offer to Purchase") &edrélated
Letter of Transmittal, dated May 7, 2010 (the “Retyal Preferred Letter of Transmittal” and, togethéth the
Perpetual Preferred Offer to Purchase, the “Peapétreferred Offer”). On June 23, 2010, the PerglePreferred
Offer was accepted by the holders of $4.8 millioraggregate liquidation preference of Perpetudieed Shares,
which shares were accepted for purchase and imtegdiadeemed by SRGL. As a result, a gain onmgdien of
Perpetual Preferred Shares of $3.9 million was rasm as a component of net income attributablerdnary
shareholders for the purpose of calculating easpeg share.

Dividends on Perpetual Preferred Shares

On April 14, 2008, we announced that, given ourenir financial condition, our Board in its discoetihad
decided not to declare a dividend on our Perpdtualerred Shares for the April 15, 2008 dividenginpant date.
In addition, we announced that pursuant to theifitete of Designations for our Perpetual Prefer&thres we
may be precluded from declaring and paying divideod the October 15, 2008 dividend payment datkdrevent
we did not meet certain financial tests under émens of the Perpetual Preferred Shares requiredsfoo pay such
dividends, which tests we subsequently did not rfaesuch dividend payment date. On July 3, 20h8,Board
determined that in light of our financial conditi@nd in accordance with the terms of the then antihg
forbearance agreements with the relevant countigpato the HSBC Il and Clearwater Re collateralafice
facilities, we would suspend the cash dividend tfee July 15, 2008 payment date. In addition, avipusly
indicated we were precluded from declaring and q@ggividends on the October 15, 2008 dividend payrdate
as we did not meet the relevant financial testeutite terms of the Perpetual Preferred Shareacdardance with
the relevant financial tests under the terms ofRbpetual Preferred Shares, we were precluded dextaring and
paying dividends on the January 15, 2009, April 28)9, July 15, 2009, October 15, 2009, January2@%0 and
April 15, 2010 dividend payment dates and did netlare and pay a dividend on such dates. Nonpayofen
dividends on July 15, 2009 marked the sixth divitlperiod for which dividends had not been declaed paid.
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Pursuant to the terms of, and subject to the puresdset forth in, the Certificate of Designatioakted to the
Perpetual Preferred Shares, the holders of theeRmipPreferred Shares are entitled to elect twectbrs to our
Board in the event dividends on the Perpetual PedeShares have not been declared and paid foorsimore
dividend periods. For further discussion on the-declaration of Perpetual Preferred Shares dididesee Note
16, “Subsequent Events”.

In accordance with the Certificate of Designatidasjre dividends on the Perpetual Preferred Shgeasrally
may be funded only to the extent they are payatiebour distributable profits, and/or the proceed a new issue
of shares, and/or out of the Share Premium Acc@mtdefined in the Certificate of Designationshted to the
Perpetual Preferred Shares.

10. Income Taxes

Income tax benefit for the three months ended BMhe2010 was $0.04 million. The net income of our
Bermuda and Cayman entities are not subject tonectax. The net income of our U.S. and Irish esgitilid not
generate a current tax expense, other than intangspenalties on accrued tax liabilities, dueht availability of
tax losses from prior tax years. The utilizationtax losses results in a reduction in deferred dagets and a
corresponding reduction in the valuation allowaestablished against those deferred tax assets.intbhme tax
benefit for the three months ended June 30, 2@10rimcipally due to a reduction in valuation alkovee resulting
from a change in deferred tax assets not suppbstetbferred tax liabilities.

Income tax benefit for the six months ended June2BQ0 was $36.4 million. The income tax benefitthe
six months ended June 30, 2010, is principally ttua release of $35.9 million of accrued tax lidieis. The
release was as a result of the reconsideratiommpasition in respect of an uncertain tax posifiofowing a U.S.
tax court ruling relating to an unaffiliated thiparty (Container Corporation v. Commissioner, 133.5 (2010)).

At June 30, 2010, we had total unrecognized taxefisn(excluding interest and penalties) of $11i8ion,
the recognition of which would result in a $3.2liit benefit at the effective tax rate. At DecemBg, 2009, we
had total unrecognized tax benefits (excludingrege and penalties) of $132.2 million, the recagnitof which
would result in a $20.6 million benefit at the efige tax rate.

Our deferred tax assets are principally supportethé reversal of deferred tax liabilities. We dawmaintained
a full valuation allowance against any remainingdeferred tax assets, given our inability to refyfuture taxable
income tax projections.

At June 30, 2010, our deferred tax liabilities ut# $47.9 million of deferred tax liabilities thaverse after
the expiration of net operating losses in appliegbtisdictions and therefore cannot support detetax assets. At
December 31, 2009, the corresponding amount ofdefeax liabilities was $49.8 million.

We file our tax returns as prescribed by the taxslaf the jurisdictions in which we operate. AsJohe 30,
2010, we remained subject to examination in thiedohg major tax jurisdictions for the years indied below:
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Major Tax Jurisdictions Open Years
u.s.
Life GroUP «.oveeeeeeeeeeeee e 2006 through 2010
NON-Life GroUp ....ccooevverviiiiiieeeeeeee e cmmem s 2006 through 2010
[reland .........eeviiieiiiiiii e, 2005 through 2010
11. Earnings per Ordinary Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondlyhi®d average number of ordinary shares outsigratid
assumes an allocation of net income to Converiitlenulative Participating Preferred Shares for teeoa or
portion of the period that this security is outsliiy. Losses are not allocated to Convertible CQative
Participating Preferred Shares. Under the prorssiof FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share (“FASBC
2607), formerly SFAS No. 128, basic earnings pearshare computed by dividing the net income attable to
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average nuwbsghares of our ordinary shares outstandingHerperiod.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated basedemeighted average number of ordinary sharesamdsig plus
the diluted effect of potential ordinary shares@tordance with the if-converted method. In acaoce with FASB
ASC 260, the exercise of options and warrants awvexsion of convertible securities is not assumadss it would
reduce earnings per share or increase loss pex.shar

The following table sets forth the computation asic and diluted earnings per ordinary share utigetwo-

class method and the if-converted method, respagtias required under FASB ASC 260 which incorpes&ITF
No. 03-06, “Participating Securities and the Twas3l Method under FASB Statement No. 128".
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Three months ended Six months ended

(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share June 30,2010  June 30, 2009  June 30, 2010  June 30, 2009
data) (Restated)
Basic income attributable to ordinary

shareholders
Numerator:
Net income attributable to ordinary

shareholders ........ccccovcvveiiiivieveeeeens $ 77982 % 176,874% 177531 % 1,838,456
Amounts allocable to convertible

cumulative participating preferred

SNAES ..o, (1,124) (2,549) (2,559) (26,511)
Numerator for basic income per ordinary

SNATE ......cveviieceeiieie e $ 76,858 $ 174,325 $ 174,972 $ 1,811,945
Denominator:
Denominator for basic income per

ordinary share - weighted average

number of

ordinary shares...........ccccoeevveveveeuenne, 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370
Basic income from continuing operations

attributable to ordinary shareholders.... $ 112 $ 255 § 255 § 26.50
Diluted income attributable to ordinary

shareholders
Numerator:
Net income attributable to ordinary

Shareholders ...........cooooveveveeveeeeeenen, $ 77,982 % 176,874 $ 177,531 $ 1,839,456
Denominator:
Denominator for basic income per

ordinary share - weighted average

number of

ordinary shares...........cccccvvveeiiciinnenn.. 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370
Effect of dilutive securitiesx.................... 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
Denominator for dilutive income per

ordinary share ...........c.coceeveever e 218,383,370 218,383,370 218,383,370 218,383,370
Diluted income from continuing

operations attributable to ordinary

Shareholders ...........coooeveveveeeeeeeeenen, $ 036 $ 081 §$ 082 % 8.42

* In accordance with FASB ASC 260, exercise of opsi and warrants or conversion of convertible sgesaris not
assumed if the result would be anti-dilutive, sashwhen a loss from continuing operations is regbror the
exercise price of the options exceeds the marke¢ f common stock. Due to the anti-dilutive effen earnings
per share (“EPS”), our stock options (which arevestible into 4,217,862 ordinary shares) potentiatbuld dilute
EPS in the future.

26



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
12. Regulatory and Rating Agencies
Order of Supervision

In connection with its receipt of the Permitted i described above in Note 1, SRUS consentettheo
issuance by the Department on January 5, 2009 @rder of Supervision, in accordance with 18 Del 86942,
The Order of Supervision subsequently was exterat@t amended on April 3, 2009 with the issuancehef t
Amended Order. Pursuant to the Amended Order, SB&ierally must receive prior written consent frame t
Department in order to engage in any transactidsiael of the ordinary course of business; makeatepgayments
or incur certain debts, obligations or liabiliti@s any transaction of $1 million or greater (praaddthat this
limitation does not apply to the payment of claimemiums and other third party reinsurance setlgs) in each
case of less than $10 million per payment); engagew business; lend any of its funds; invest afigs funds in a
manner that deviates from the plan filed with thepBrtment; commute, novate, amend or otherwisegehany
existing reinsurance contract or treaty; or engagmy transaction with any related party.

Ratings

Our financial strength ratings and the financiaksgth ratings of our subsidiaries have been lodvere
several occasions since 2007. Ratings at suclslelso previously triggered the vesting of cortinatrecapture
rights in respect of certain of our reinsuranceimess and resulted in the increase to a maximuepfs&d up” rate
of certain guarantor fees in respect of the sdeation structures used to finance the ValuatioiLité Insurance
Policies Model Regulation (“Regulation XXX") statuy reserve requirements associated with businededcby
SRUS to each of Orkney Re and Orkney Re IlI. Ihtlgf the foregoing and our pursuit of a run-ofagtgy for our
remaining business, among other factors, we deteinthat we no longer intended to utilize capitalthe payment
of ratings fees to maintain the financial strengtid other ratings for us and our operating subs@diaat such
levels. Accordingly, we notified each of the ratiagencies in June 2009 that we no longer wouldpemsate the
agencies for their maintenance of such ratings.

Following this communication, on June 4, 2009, 8tad & Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), affirmed and the
subsequently withdrew the “CC” counterparty credting of SRGL, the “C” rating of SRGL’s Perpetirieferred
Shares, and the “CCC-" counterparty credit andrfina strength ratings of SALIC. At the same tingXP
affrmed and then withdrew the “R” counterparty diteand financial strength ratings of SRUS, the ©C
counterparty credit and financial strength ratinfisScottish Re Life Corporation and the “CCC-" sensecured
rating of the Pass-Through Certificates.

On June 12, 2009, A.M. Best Company Inc. (“A.M. Beaffirmed and then withdrew the financial stréimg
ratings and issuer credit ratings of SALIC, Scattige Life Corporation and Orkney Re. At the samet A.M.
Best affirmed and then withdrew our issuer crediing and the rating of our Perpetual Preferredé&has well as
our indicative ratings of senior unsecured debhosdinated debt and preferred stock. SRUS’ firgansirength
rating of “E” (Under Regulatory Supervision) andusr credit rating of “rs” was unchanged.

On June 22, 2009, Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) downgddee issuer default rating of SRGL to “CC” fromCC”
and then withdrew its rating of SRGL. At the satime, Fitch affirmed and then withdrew the insufieancial
strength rating of SRUS. Fitch also has withdrale insurer financial strength rating of SALIC athe rating of
the Pass-Through Certificates and the PerpetudéiPed Shares. As such, Fitch has withdrawn abwf ratings
and no longer will provide analytical coverageéspect of us and our affiliates.

On August 18, 2009, Moody’s downgraded the inswuedimancial strength ratings of SALIC to “Ca” froig”
and SRUS to “Ba3” from “Bal”, before withdrawingthaatings. At the same time, Moody’s downgradetda”
from “C” and then withdrew the senior secured mutof the Pass-Through Certificates and our predesteck
rating.
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We engaged in 2008 in a process to sell our ehtieeReinsurance North America Segment. In Oct&08,
the process led to exclusive negotiations withaspective buyer; however, a satisfactory transadto the sale of
the entire Life Reinsurance North America Segmentlat not be reached, primarily as a result of tieohic
disruption in the financial markets. Thereaftar,an effort to find ways to address our capitajuillity and
collateral needs and the concerns of regulatorqgusued the sale of a specific block of individiifel reinsurance
in our North American business. These efforts dudited in the announcement on February 20, 2009wbahad
closed the transactions contemplated by the M&sset Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreemdmyt'and
among the Company, SHI, SRUS, Scottish Re LifeifRela) Limited (“SRLB") and Scottish Re (Dublin) Lited
(“SRD”) (collectively, the “Sellers”) with HannoveRe to sell a block of individual life reinsuranbesiness
acquired in 2004 from the ING Companies, which kloonsisted primarily of term life reinsurance wersal life
with secondary guarantees, and yearly renewabie leisiness (the “Acquired Business”).

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Hannover Rehgmed the Acquired Business, which was acquired in
2004 by us from the ING Companies. The AcquirediBss consists primarily of term life reinsurangeiversal
life with secondary guarantees, and yearly renesvédsim business. When we originally purchasedAiteuired
Business in 2004, the ING Companies reinsured thdividual life reinsurance business to us on @%0ndemnity
reinsurance basis. A large portion of such busimedaded guaranteed level premium term life insgethat was
subject to the Regulation XXX reserve requiremamd universal life policies with secondary guarastsubject to
the “Regulation AXXX" reserve requirements. Undmir 2004 agreement with the ING Companies, the ING
Companies were obligated to maintain collateraltfer Regulation XXX and AXXX reserve requiremenfstee
Acquired Business for the duration of such requiets, and financial incentives were provided tooenage us to
replace this financing with alternative third pafityancing. The Acquired Business does not inclodsiness ceded
by SRUS to Ballantyne Re as the reinsurance tréinsawith this special purpose reinsurance vehigds novated
and assigned from SRUS to SLD effective Octobe?N8. However, the Acquired Business does inchinge
business recaptured from Ballantyne Re in connectith a series of recaptures during 2008 in whHgRUS
recaptured business from Ballantyne Re, which lassirnthen was recaptured by SLD which in turn cetied
recaptured business to SLDI who ceded it to SRUB (foregoing recaptures, collectively, the “Ballare
Recaptures”), nor does it include the businessptecad in connection with the unwind of our HSBCctllateral
finance facility (together with the Ballantyne Rptres, the “ING Financings”). In connection wihch of the
ING Financings, SLD ceded the applicable recaptimesiness to SLDI, which ceded the recaptured lbssino
SRLB. SLDI agreed to provide, or cause the provigi§ one or more LOCs in order to provide SLD wsthtutory
financial statement credit for the excess reseasmciated with the recaptured business in regfettte ING
Financings. As partial consideration for eachhaf ING Financings, the Company agreed to bear dbts of the
LOCs by paying SLD a facility fee based on the faogunt of such LOCs outstanding. The cost ofe¢Ha3Cs
was consistent with the pricing schedules from 004 acquisition agreement with ING Companies, wch s
schedule was amended on May 7, 2007. Upon cldhimdransactions contemplated by the Purchase Agneg
Hannover Re assumed the business related to theFiN&hcings as part of the Acquired Business, dkagethe
obligation to pay the existing and any future iases in the related LOC fees.

In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the I&@npanies and certain of the Sellers entered into
recapture agreements (and, in specific instancesations to Hannover Re of certain existing reiasoe
agreements) with respect to the Acquired Busiress,the ING Companies and Hannover Re subsequamttyed
into new reinsurance agreements with respect té\toggired Business immediately thereafter. Thesapture and
reinsurance transactions and the novations hadffactiee date of January 1, 2009. SRUS and SRLBaia
responsible for liabilities and obligations to SbBRd SLDI under their reinsurance agreements withdlparties to
the extent attributable to periods prior to Januar2009.

The Purchase Agreement also related to the purcrakeale of certain assets used by the Sellesninection
with their administration of the Acquired Busindtse “Transferred Assets”) and the transfer ofaiaremployees
from the Sellers to Hannover Re in connection théle Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, theiréngalease
on SRUS’ Denver office location was assigned tortaer Re as was a portion of SRUS’ Charlotte offiamtion.
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In addition, Hannover Re entered into an admirtisteaservices agreement with SRUS pursuant to wHighnover
Re administers the accepted and ceded mortalityndss retained by SRUS and its affiliates. Sirylddannover
Re entered into an administrative services agreeméh the ING Companies pursuant to which HannoRer
administers the Acquired Business and providesitedther administrative services to the ING Conigsn

In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, paynvesits made as follows: (i) the Sellers made recaptu
payments to the ING Companies in an aggregate ameguml to $1,325 million (adjusted for interim joer
earnings from January 1, 2009 to the date of aipsifii) the ING Companies made correspondingahiiremium
payments to Hannover Re, and (iii) Hannover Re neaapgayment to the Sellers in respect of the TraresleAssets
in an amount equal to $18 million.

Following the transfer of assets with respect @ thcapture payments noted above, we were reledsait
associated policyholder liabilities on the salghe Acquired Business as of the effective dateaoiudry 1, 2009.
The release of such liabilities resulted in a pre-gain of $703.6 million, after transaction expenand related
costs. This gain was also subject to certain cgeticies, which were all satisfied as at Decembef829. Of the
$703.6 million gain, $642.4 million, $59.8 millioi$1.0 million, and $0.4 million were recognizedthre first,
second, third and fourth quarters of 2009, respelsti This total gain is summarized as follows:

Consolidated
Statement of

(U.S. dollars in millions) Balance Sheet Income
Transfer of investments ..., $ (1,468.7)
Release of reserve for future policy benefits......... 1,902.9
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 1.7
Decrease in reinsurance balances and risk fees

receivable ... (6.3)
Decrease in reinsurance balances payable .......... 4.7
Increase in Other asSets ..................omeeveevesveanes 18.7
Decrease in claims and other policy benefits....... $ 453.0 $ 453.0
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 275.5
Change in value of embedded derivatives............. $ 275.5 275.5
Release in deferred acquisition COSLS ... ne. (24.9)
Acquisition costs and other insurance expenses,

11 STV $ (24.9) (24.9)
Total pre-tax gain as at December 31, 2009......... $ 703.6

In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the GommypHannover Re and the ING Companies agreedeto us
commercially reasonable efforts to transfer to Hesen Re certain retrocession agreements under wigchnd/or
the ING Companies ceded to third parties certaksrielated to the Acquired Business. If a ceamount of such
third party retrocessionaires did not consent hswansfers prior to April 30, 2009, we were reqdiunder the
Purchase Agreement to deposit into escrow with lda@enRe by May 14, 2009, a pro-rata amount rel&deslich
retrocession agreements for which consent had men lobtained as of that date. Pursuant to the Bsech
Agreement, in the event none of the retrocessieaaionsented to transfer their agreements, thenmiaxipotential
escrow funding amount was $136.3 million. In theergvone or more retrocessionaire consents had een b
obtained by December 31, 2009, the related escumdsf would be released to Hannover Re. As of tkeoes
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funding requirement date of May 14, 2009, the baganas $1.9 million. The required escrow balanas reduced
to $0 million and all of the funds were releasedkd® us by the end of 2009.

This transaction resulted in a $49.8 millincome tax expense in the first quarter of 2@ to an increase
in our valuation allowance. The increased valumtibowance was because the remaining deferrelibtaikities did
not support the full recoverability of our deferreck assets, as discussed earlier in Note 2, “Bddiresentation-
Restatement of Prior Financial Statements”.

14. Collateral Finance Facilities
Ballantyne Re
De-consolidation of Ballantyne Re

Ballantyne Re is a special purpose reinsuranceckeimcorporated under the laws of Ireland. In N2906,
Ballantyne Re issued in a private offering $1.7Hidn of debt to third party investors, $178 miliaof Class C
Notes and $181.2 million in preference shares thlSAand $500,000 in Class D Notes to SRGL.

Initially, in accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Bailtyne Re was considered to be a variable interagly
and we were considered to hold the primary beradficiterest following a quantitative analysis whsret was
determined that we would absorb a majority of tkpeeted losses. As a result, Ballantyne Re wasatidased in
our financial statements through December 31, 2008.

Effective January 1, 2009, Ballantyne Re no lorigezonsolidated within the financial statementsS&GL.
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (as definednhdoe the disposal of the Acquired Business, Harer Re
explicitly agreed to assume the mortality risk &irrecaptures of business from Ballantyne Re. dsposal of the
variable interest to absorb mortality risk recaptufrom Ballantyne Re under the reinsurance agreeomnstituted
a reconsideration event related to the consolidatibBallantyne Re under FASB ASC 810-10, Consiah -
Overall (“FASB ASC 810-10"). We subsequently contptea primary beneficiary analysis and concluded e
no longer are the primary beneficiary of BallantyRe as defined within FASB ASC 810-10 and, as alteso
longer are consolidating Ballantyne Re into thaificial statements of SRGL. The de-consolidatioBalfantyne
Re reduced our consolidated total assets and itiebilby approximately $885 million and $2,035 ioif,
respectively, resulting in a one-time non-cash aesolidation gain of $1,150 million which we recaged in the
first quarter of 2009. This gain had no impacion liquidity position.

As of June 30, 2010, we had no remaining direct Esgosure related to Ballantyne Re since ouresterin
the Ballantyne Re Class D Notes and Preferred Staeevalued at $0 and are classified as tradicgrisies on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Class C Notessoerteactually written-off during the fourth quartef 2008.

SRUS remains liable for breaches of its represemst warranties, covenants and other obligatibas itelate
to periods before the assignment and novation @ &lthe reinsurance agreement with Ballantyne Readdition,
the Company and SRUS remain responsible for ceotagoing covenants and indemnities made for thefiienf
Ballantyne Re and the financial guarantors of teidéthe notes issued by Ballantyne Re.

Orkney |
On February 11, 2005, Orkney | issued and sold jpmivate offering an aggregate of $850 million 8erA
Floating Rate Insured Notes due February 11, 2685 “Orkney Notes”). Orkney | was organized for thmited

purpose of issuing the Orkney Notes and holdingstbek of Orkney Re, Inc., originally a South Caralspecial
purpose financial captive insurance company, n@elaware special purpose captive insurance comg@rkney
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Re"). SRUS holds all of the limited liability compginterest in Orkney |, and has contributed capitadrkney | in
the amount of $268.5 million. Proceeds from thifeiig were used to fund the Regulation XXX reserve
requirements for a defined block of level premiwamnt life insurance policies issued by direct cedingpanies
between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2003 earslired by SRUS to Orkney Re. Proceeds from the&y
Notes have been deposited into a series of accthattsollateralize the notes and the reserve atitigs of SRUS.

The holders of the Orkney Notes have no recourainagus or any of our subsidiaries, other thann@ykl.
The timely payment of interest and ultimate paynanprincipal for the Orkney Notes are guarantegdviBIA
Insurance Corporation (“MBIA”). We are not requr® provide any additional financial support td@ey I.

Interest on the principal amount of the Orkney Ndtepayable quarterly at a rate equivalent toetfmenth
LIBOR plus 0.53%. At June 30, 2010, the interedé rwas 0.96% (compared to 0.80% at December 319)20
Any payment of principal, including by redemptiam,interest on the Orkney Notes is sourced fronideénds from
Orkney Re, and the balances available in a sefiégist accounts generally excluding amounts onodign a
reinsurance trust account supporting the associaseive requirements of SRUS. Dividends only fmaymade
after filing with the Commissioner in accordancehathe terms of Orkney Re’s licensing order anédnordance
with applicable law. The Orkney Notes also contaitustomary limitation on lien provisions and ousary events
of default provisions, which, if breached, coulduit in the accelerated maturity of the Orkney Hot®rkney | has
the option to redeem all or a portion of the Orkigtes prior to and on or after February 11, 2Giject to
certain call premiums.

In accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Orkney | is sidared to be a variable interest entity and we are
considered to hold the primary beneficial inteesive cede all the business assumed by Orkney fododing an
analysis whereby it was determined that we woukbdiba majority of the expected losses. As a reGukney | is
consolidated in our financial statements. ThetasseOrkney | have been recorded as fixed matumirgstments
and cash and cash equivalents. Our Consolidatgdrénts of Income shows the investment returnrkh€y | as
investment income and the cost of the facility eflected in collateral finance facilities expenseunds in the
securitization structure are used for the sole @sgpof the securitization structure and hence ateavailable for
general corporate purposes.

To the extent we experience fair value declinesuninvestment portfolio, we may need to recaptupgo-rata
portion of the underlying business in Orkney | dind alternative collateral support for the recaptiibusiness. No
assurances can be given that we would be succéssfeturing alternative collateral support.

Related Party Acquisition of Orkney Notes

We were informed by Cerberus that an aféiliaf Cerberus had acquired from one or more Jraéd third
parties $700 million in aggregate principal amoofithe Orkney Notes in 2009. None of the Comp#@nkney |,
Orkney Re or any of our other subsidiaries wasrgypa this purchase. No terms of the Orkney Nateany of the
underlying transaction documents were changedresudt of this purchase.

Orkney Re/Orkney | Notices of Default

On February 9, 2009, MBIA served Orkney Rekr@y | and SRUS with notices of default under eatthe
Orkney | indenture and the insurance and indemagyeement (the “Orkney Insurance Agreement”), aligg
failure by the parties to provide certain requifiedncial statements and improper withdrawals ey larties from
Orkney | tax accounts. SRUS cured such allegeduttsfwithin the cure periods set forth in the imuee and the
Orkney Insurance Agreement. However, SRUS and M&dAtinue discussions related to certain of thedomg
and other items.
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On September 21, 2009, MBIA served Orkney Rrkney | and SRUS with a notice of default untter
restructuring agreement executed at the time oh&rkRe’s redomestication from South Carolina toabalre,
alleging failure by the parties to provide MBIA Wwian actuarial review in accordance with the rexents set
forth in the restructuring agreement. SRUS, Orkhegd Orkney Re disagree with such contentionwéier, in
the event such alleged failure to provide an aclegview ultimately is determined to be a defaatid because it
was not cured within five (5) business days of September 21, 2009 notice, then such default wonitdtitute an
event of default under the Orkney Insurance Agregmehich in turn would provide certain enhancedtcactual
rights to MBIA under the Orkney Insurance Agreemémtiuding the right to recover from Orkney | aagtual
losses, costs and expenses incurred by MBIA in ection with the event of default and the receiptceftain
penalty fees. Pursuant to the terms of a lettezeagent put in place between SRUS and MBIA atithe of the
Orkney | transaction, SRUS would also be obligateday on behalf of Orkney | certain of the foregpfees and
expenses to the extent due from Orkney |. Fohé@&urtliscussion related to Orkney Re/Orkney | NaticEDefault,
see Note 16, “Subsequent Events”.

On February 22, 2010, MBIA served Orkney Bekney | and SRUS with notices of default undecteof the
Orkney | indenture and the Orkney Insurance Agrednadleging failure by the parties to provide eértrequired
financial statements and other documents requioetdet delivered under these transaction docume®RUS
subsequently caused such documents to be deliveteth the applicable cure periods and, as of thte chereof,
there is no event of default resulting from suctices of default.

Orkney Re I

On December 21, 2005, Orkney Re II, whose issudhary shares are held by a share trustee andritinees
in trust for charitable purposes, issued in a peivafering $450 million of debt to external invest. The debt
consisted of $382.5 million of Series A-1 FloatiRgte Guaranteed Notes (the “Series A-1 Notes”),Bddllion of
Series A-2 Floating Rate Notes (the “Series A-2dst)t and $25 million of Series B Floating Rate &o{the
“Series B Notes”), all due December 31, 2035 (ablely, the “Orkney Re Il Notes”). The Orkney RéNotes are
listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. Proceeds frbis offering were used to fund the Regulation XXeserve
requirements for a defined block of level premiwemt life insurance policies issued between Janlia®004 and
December 31, 2004 reinsured by SRUS to Orkney ReRtoceeds from the Orkney Re Il Notes have been
deposited into a series of accounts that collasersihe notes and the reserve obligations of SRUS.

The holders of the Orkney Re Il Notes have no resmagainst us or any of our subsidiaries. AssGnearanty
(UK) Ltd. (“Assured”) has guaranteed the timely pent of the scheduled interest payments and timeipél on
the maturity date of the Series A-1 Notes. Werarterequired to provide any additional financigbsart to Orkney
Re II.

The debt issued to SALIC consisted of $30 millidnSeries C Floating Rate Notes (“Series C Notesig d
December 21, 2036, and $5 million of Series B Nofésse Series C Notes accrue interest only UngilOrkney Re
Il Notes are fully repaid. SRGL owns $0.5 milliorerfgs D Convertible Notes due December 21, 2036, an
76,190,000 Preference Shares of $1.00 each iratapit

Interest on the principal amount of the Orkney Rbldtes is payable quarterly at a rate equivalenthtee-
month LIBOR plus 0.425% for the Series A-1 Notéseé-month LIBOR plus 0.73% for the Series A-2 Notnd
three-month LIBOR plus 3.0% for the Series B Notés.June 30, 2010, the interest rate on the SéxiésNotes
was 0.85% (compared to 0.70% at December 31, 2@®jes A-2 Notes was 1.16% (compared to 1.00% at
December 31, 2009), and Series B Notes was 3.48%pared to 3.27% at December 31, 2009). The Orikeel
Notes also contain customary limitation on lienyisons and customary events of default provisiomisich, if
breached, could result in the accelerated mataofithe Orkney Re Il Notes. Orkney Re Il has théapto redeem
all or a portion of the Orkney Re Il Notes, subjectertain call premiums and available (unencumethefunds.
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In accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Orkney Re Itamsidered to be a variable interest entity ancaree
considered to hold the primary beneficial interastwe cede all the business assumed by Orkney Redl
following an analysis whereby it was determined the would absorb a majority of the expected los8ssa result,
Orkney Re Il is consolidated in our financial staémts. The assets of Orkney Re Il have been redaddixed
maturity investments and cash and cash equivaleédts. Consolidated Statements of Income showsrestment
return of Orkney Re Il as investment income and dbst of the securitization structure is reflectiectollateral
finance facilities expense. Funds in the secuatitims are primarily used for the purpose of theugtzations and
hence are not available for general corporate p&Ro

To the extent we experience fair value declinestininvestment portfolio, we may need to recapaupzo-rata
portion of the underlying business in Orkney Rarid find alternative collateral support for theagitred business.
No assurances can be given that we would be sdatassecuring alternative collateral support.

Orkney Re Il Event of Default, Acceleration and é@osure

On the scheduled interest payment date on May 019,2rkney Re Il was unable to make scheduledeste
payments on the Series A-1 Notes. Failure to nsaioh payments in full when due constitutes an evédefault
under the Orkney Re Il indenture (“Orkney EOD”)ssAired, in its capacity as financial guarantohef$eries A-1
Notes, made guarantee payments on the Series AelsNothe amount of $1.2 million. As a resultleé Orkney
EOD, Assured obtained, and will continue to havertain enhanced contractual rights under the tciiosa
documents and additional fees will be accruedHerguarantee coverage.

Among Assured’s enhanced contractual rights aréh@yight to instruct the trustee to declare thegipal of
and the interest on all the Notes to be due andidaymmediately and (b) the right to foreclosemfite Collateral
(as defined in the related indenture). On Jur0@9, Assured instructed the trustee to accelé¢nat®lotes and the
trustee delivered a notice of acceleration to OykRe 1l on June 18, 2009. On June 19, 2009, Assncdified
Orkney Re Il and the trustee that it was electmfpteclose upon the Collateral.

Following these actions, on June 26, 2009, SRUSciserl its contractual right under its agreemernith w
Orkney Re Il to withdraw all assets from the resecvedit trust established by Orkney Re Il for benefit of
SRUS. The withdrawn assets were deposited into SSREgregated accounts pursuant to the terms of the
reinsurance agreement between SRUS and Orkney @eell‘Orkney Re Il Reinsurance Agreement”) whédreyt
are held in order to provide reserve credit to SRShe reinsurance liabilities that continue ®deded to Orkney
Re Il and for certain other permissible uses uitderOrkney Re Il Reinsurance Agreement. The tearsf assets
had no impact on our consolidated financial statéme

On the scheduled interest payment dates of Auglised09, November 12, 2009, February 11, 2010 aag M
11, 2010, Orkney Re Il was unable to make schedinlalest payments on the Series A-1 Notes. Adsorade
guarantee payments on the Series A-1 Notes in rt@uat of $1.4 million, $0.9 million, $0.7 millionnd $0.6
million, for August 11, 2009, November 12, 2009bfeary 11, 2010, and May 11, 2010, respectively.

For further discussion on the Orkney Re Il schedlufgerest payments on the Series A-1 Notes, s¢e g
“Subsequent Events”.
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Consolidated collateral finance facilities and settization structures

The following table reflects the significant balascattributable to the collateral finance faciitiand
securitization structures providing collateral sogtfio us as at June 30, 2010:

Orkney Re
(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Assets
Fixed maturity investments $ 1,070.1 $ - $1,070.1
Funds withheld at interest - 316.9 916
Cash and cash equivalents 95.2 1.6 6.8 9
All other assets........... 107.5 64.5 172.0
Total assets................ $ 12728 $ 383.0 $ 165538
Liabilities
Reserves for future policy benefits $ 3141 $ 824 3 438.9
Collateral finance facilities 850.0 450.0 1,300.0
All other liabilities .... 39.5 15.8 55.3
Total liabilities .......... $ 12036 $ 5906 $ 1,794.2

The assets listed in the foregoing table are stitjea variety of restrictions on their use, asfeet in, and
governed by, the transaction documents for theiegdge collateral finance facilities and securitiaa structures to
which they relate. In addition, of the amountsfeeth in total assets above, $345.0 million an®.89million, for
Orkney | and Orkney Re II, respectively, have beetiuded from the total investments of consolidatée amount
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet of SRGL as a 30n 2010. Such excluded amounts represent getsas
projected to support the expected reinsurancelitiabi of $314.1 million and $124.8 million assdeid, with
business ceded to Orkney | and Orkney Re IlI, rdgmdg. No assurances can be given that the erpect
reinsurance liabilities will not increase in theeatv of adverse mortality experience in our reinsoea
agreements. Under certain circumstances, suchrswveortality experience may in future periods éase the
amount of assets excluded from the total investmehtconsolidated VIE on the Consolidated Balanbee$ of
SRGL. These reinsurance liabilities of Orkney d @rkney Re Il are eliminated from the ConsolidaBadance
Sheet of SRGL because they represent inter-comipangactions.
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The following table reflects the significant balascattributable to the collateral finance faciitiand
securitization structures providing collateral sogifgo us as at the year ended December 31, 2009:

Orkney Re
(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Assets
Fixed maturity investments $ 1,001.1 $ - $1,001.1
Funds withheld at interest - 303.1 303
Cash and cash equivalents 113.1 1.9 5.011
All other assets........... 106.4 60.1 166.5
Total assets................ $ 12206 $ 3651 $ 15857
Liabilities
Reserves for future policy benefits $ 313.0 $ 018. $ 431.0
Collateral finance facilities 850.0 450.0 1,300.0
All other liabilities .... 33.9 10.8 447
Total liabilities .......... $ 11969 $ 5788 $ 17757

The following table reflects the significant incomtatement amounts attributable to the collaterance
facilities and securitization structures providicwlateral support to us for the three and six memnded June 30,
2010:

Three months ended June 30,

2010
Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net $ 27.2 $ 14.9 $ 42.1
Investment income, net 6.0 4.9 10.9
Net realized and unrealized gains

(([eS551=15) I 22.5 (0.2) 22.3
Net embedded derivative

adjustments............ - 7.3 7.3
Total revenues.......... $ 557 $ 269 % 82.6
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits $ 20.2 $ 11.1 $ 313
Acquisition costs and other

insurance expenses, net 5.8 3.2 9.0
Operating expenses ... 0.1 - 0.1
Collateral finance facilities expense 3.8 2.3 6.1
Total benefits and expenses $ 299 $ 166 $ 46.5

35



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
June 30, 2010
14. Collateral Finance Facilities (continued)

Six months ended June 30, 2010

Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net $ 43.0 $ 28.7 $ 71.7
Investment income, net 11.9 10.0 21.9
Net realized and unrealized gains

(([E1C1S) 47.2 (0.2) 47.0
Net embedded derivative

adjustments............ - 8.3 8.3
Total revenues.......... $ 1021 $ 468 0§ 1489
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits $ 35.1 $ 21.1 $ 56.2
Acquisition costs and other

insurance expenses, net 9.0 6.5 15.5
Operating expenses ... 0.2 0.2 0.4
Collateral finance facilities expense 7.4 4.5 11.9
Total benefits and expenses $ 517 $ 323 $ 84.0

The following table reflects the significant incorstatement amounts attributable to the collataranice
facilities and securitization structures providitwlateral support to us for the three and six mernded June 30,
2009:

Three months ended June 30,

2009
Orkney Re

U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net $ 27.4 $ 15.5 $ 42.9
Investment income, net 6.2 2.7 8.9
Net realized and unrealized gains

(10SS€S) ...ocveee. 27.0 (0.1) 26.9
Total revenues........... $§ 606 $ 181 % 8.7
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits $ 20.8 $ 10.3 $ 311
Acquisition costs and other

insurance expenses, net 6.3 3.4 9.7
Operating expenses ... (0.2) - (0.2)
Collateral finance facilities expense 5.4 3.1 8.5
Total benefits and expenses $ 324 $ 168 $ 49.2
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Six months ended June 30, 2009

Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net $ 44.3 $ 30.3 $ 74.6
Investment income, net 12.7 5.6 18.3
Net realized and unrealized gains

(10SS€S) ..vveeen. (3.6) (28.0) (31.6)
Total revenues........... $ 534 % 7.9 $ 61.3
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits $ 38.0 $ 18.2 $ 56.2
Acquisition costs and other

insurance expenses, net 9.6 6.8 16.4
Operating expenses ... 0.2 0.3 0.5
Collateral finance facilities expense 12.0 6.8 18.8
Total benefits and expenses $ 598 $ 321 % 91.9

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Indemnification

In connection with an examination of the statutancounting books of certain of our operating insoea
subsidiaries, and specifically, the purchase adiogientries made in connection with the 2004 asitjah of the
ING business, we determined that certain intercompaceivables and intercompany claims were nd¢ctfd in
the statutory financial statements of SRUS and $iRBccordance with applicable statutory accounpragtices.
Management determined that as a result of thesesdire statutory surplus for SRD was overstated ommulative
basis at year end 2004, 2005 and 2006, resultirrgrigstated statutory surplus at year end 200¢p@foximately
$285 million after giving effect to these correciso

In addition, management determined that the stgtorplus for SRUS was understated on a cumuléiasgss
at year end 2005 and 2006, resulting in a reststegdtory surplus at year end 2006 of approxima#8§4 million
after giving effect to these corrections.

The restated statutory surplus of each of SRUS SR® met the applicable minimum statutory surplus
requirements at December 31, 2006. None of theseeations impact our historical consolidated ficiah
statements under U.S. GAAP.

Pursuant to the Agreement with MassMutual Capitad &erberus, we made certain representations and
warranties regarding the statutory financial staets of each of our insurance subsidiaries, inoydRD and
SRUS, for the years ended 2003, 2004 and 2005vétidrespect to SRUS but not SRD, the first threarters of
2006, including that these statements were prepareginformity with applicable statutory accountimgctices and
fairly present in accordance with such practicaesall material respects, the statutory financiahdition of the
relevant insurance subsidiary at the respectivesdatn light of our discovery of the correctioresdribed above,
we notified MassMutual Capital and Cerberus, asired by the terms of the Agreement, of the ovéestent of
statutory surplus in SRD at year end 2004 and thderstatement of such statutory surplus at year 28ub
resulting in a cumulative overstatement for the ywar period at year end 2005 of approximately $illlon on an
after-tax basis, and the understatement of statsianplus in SRUS for the year ended 2005 of agprately $14.5
million on an after-tax basis. On November 16, 20@assMutual Capital and Cerberus responded hfyimat us
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of their concern that the corrections describedvalimay constitute breaches of certain of the remtasions and
warranties made by us in the Agreement. Unde”Atgreement, in the event of a claim for losses tesylfrom a
diminution in value, such losses would be deterohibg an independent investment banking firm of oval
reputation, agreed upon by us and MassMutual Qaguiih Cerberus, based on changes in the valuafi@RGL
using the assumptions and models used by MassMGayaital and Cerberus at the time of their decisoomvest
in us. Furthermore, should any claim for indenwaifion be made by MassMutual Capital and Cerbehss,
Agreement provides that any decision regardingrdbfgy or settling such claim will be taken by a coittee of
independent directors of our Board of Directors.tHeir November 16, 2007 correspondence, MassNM@apital
and Cerberus requested that we convene a committadependent directors. No action has since &l by us
or the Investors in respect of this claim. At ttilme, we do not know what the amount of any indifiaisle losses
would be, if any, or what potential defenses oreotlimitations on indemnification may be availabbeus under
those circumstances. The Agreement provides thairalemnification claim would be satisfied by astjng the
conversion amount at which the Convertible CumuéatParticipating Preferred Shares issued to Massallut
Capital and Cerberus are convertible into our Gudirshares.

16. Subsequent Events

The subsequent events disclosed in thesesntmt the consolidated financials have been ewsdudy
management up to and including the publicatiorheffinancial statements on August 20, 2010.

Stingray

On July 1, 2010 we acquired through privately nigedl transactions an additional $55.5 million gfegate
stated amount of Pass-Through Certificates. Irjuration with these acquisitions we obtained coh$em the
sellers to proposed amendments to certain of theterk transactions documents. The proposed amensgimen
provided for the termination of the Interest Ratea effective July 2, 2010. The termination of theerest Rate
Swap resulted in a swap termination payment toStegray Pass-Through Trust of $39.2 million (ttfawap
Termination Payment”), which amount subsequentlg diatributed on the July 12, 2010 payment datergia to
all holders of record of Pass-Through Certificatssof June 30, 2010, including the sellers. Afsult of its
ownership as of June 30, 2010 of $244.8 milliomgygregate stated amount of Pass-Through Certi§ic&aLIC
received $29.5 million of the Swap Termination Papton the July 12, 2010 distribution date.

On July 7 2010, SALIC launched a cash tender daffgrurchase any and all of the remaining outstan&iass-
Through Certificates. The tender offer was madeallothe holders (the “Holders”) of such Pass-Tigtou
Certificates not currently held by SALIC or any auir affiliates upon the terms and subject to theddmns set
forth in the related Offer to Purchase, dated Jyl2010 (the "2010 Offer to Purchase") and thetedld etter of
Transmittal, dated July 7, 2010 (the “2010 LetteT@nsmittal” and, together with the 2010 OfferRarchase, the
“2010 Offer”). As of the date of the launch of tB810 Offer, approximately $24.7 million in aggrégatated
amount of Pass-Through Certificates were held by frarty Holders and therefore subject to the 201f@r.

On August 3, 2010, the 2010 Offer was acceptechbyHolders of $24.7 million in aggregate stated amof
Pass-Through Certificates, leaving $8,000 in aggeegtated amount of Pass-Through Certificates belthird
party Holders.

As of August 20, 2010, we had cancelled approxilpai824.9 million in aggregate stated amount of Plaess-

Through Certificates, leaving $108,000 in aggregasted amount of Pass-Through Certificates stitstanding,
with $100,000 held by SALIC and $8,000 held by onenore third party Holders.
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16. Subsequent Events (continued)
Orkney Re/Orkney | Notices of Default

As of August 20, 2010, MBIA, Orkney Re, Orkney I1daBRUS are engaged in discussions and negotiations
related to the actuarial review and alleged defaddtscribed in Note 14, “Orkney IGrkney Re/Orkney | Notices of
Default’.
Orkney Re I

On the scheduled interest payment date uguat 11, 2010, Orkney Re Il was unable to makeduled

interest payments on the Series A-1 Notes. AsaltteAssured made guarantee payments on the SeteNotes
in the amount of $0.8 million.

Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate Cégdi Securities and Trust Preferred Securities

Subsequent to June 30, 2010, we have atane deferred payment of an additional $0.2 nmlt6 interest on
our floating rate capital securities and trust pnefd securities. As of August 20, 2010, we hasereed and
deferred payment on a total of $9.0 million of net&.

Non-declaration of Perpetual Preferred Shares Dieitds

In accordance with the relevant financiatdeunder the terms of the Perpetual PreferredeShave were
precluded from declaring and paying dividends andtly 15, 2010 dividend payment date. As disiss Note
9, “Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares”, ltbéders of the Perpetual Preferred Shares contiauee
entitled pursuant to the terms of, and subjech®procedures set forth in, the Certificate of Beations for the
Perpetual Preferred Shares to elect two directorSRGL’'s Board as a result of dividends on the Btral
Preferred Shares having not been declared andqrasik or more dividend periods. This right had heen validly
exercised to date.

39



